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28,575 28,839 28,334 18,402 16,679
2,923 2,076 9,759 1,067 1,748
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(13,222) (16,394)

3,457 2,008
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(145) 78

110,455 171,967
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5,13,23,24,25,27 247,880 -
5,13,14,23,24,25,27 31,226 57,348
16 1 3
279,107 57,351
5,13,23,25,27 1,913,551 2,457,199
5,13,14,23,24,25,27 191,955 125,801
5,13,15,27 241 557
12 237 122
5,13,16,27 122,159 117,888
2,228,143 2,701,567
2,507,250 2,758,918
17,26 6,991 6,658
26 1,321 1,321
26 12,430 11,390
18 17,863 16,484
38,605 35,853
13,19,23,24,26,27 161,606 242,203
13,20,23,24,26,27 721,494 797,915
13,14,23,24,25,27 140,222 144,167
12 3,292 2,579
1,026,614 1,186,864
13,23,26,27 787,126 896,182
13,19,23,26,27 40,967 12,534
13,20,23,24,26,27 441,039 536,694
13,14,23,24,25,27 109,208 48,569
13,21,27 63,691 42,222
1,442,031 1,536,201
2,468,645 2,723,065
2,507,250 2,758,918
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17,26 6,658 1,321 9,646 1,744 16,484 35,853
- - - - 1,313 1,313
- - 1,373 - 66 1,439
- - 1,373 - 1,379 2,752
333 - - (333) - -
2022 31 6,991 1,321 11,019 1,411 17,863 38,605
2020
17,26 6,117 1,321 12,607 2,285 20,495 42,825
- - - - 1,006 1,006
- - (2,961) - 283 (2,678)
- - (2,91 - 1,289 (1.672)
541 - - (541) - -
- - - - (5,300) (5,300)
2021 31 6,658 1,321 9,646 1,744 16,484 35,853
66
1,373
283 2,961
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1,313 1,006
152 148,669
713 (483)
12) (33)
13 295,768 (14,531)
(109,056) 114,869
13,14,23,24 (40,032) (54,773)
13,14,23,24 56,694 (87,849)
16 (4,386) 138,101
21 21,469 33,921
222,623 278,897
13,20,23,24 555,662 792,426
13,19,23 (49,857) (121,643)
13,20,23,24 (728,757) (944,457)
18 - (5,300)
(222,952) (278,974)
(329) an
13 34
557 600
15 241 557
2022 31 2021 31
(13,357) (17,127)
16,545 18,560
12 (452) (516)
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254,737 (49,857) (2,220) 7 202,573
1,334,609 (173,005) 1,019 - 1,162,533
1,589,346 (222,952) (1,201) @n 1,365,106

2020 2021 31
380,150 (121,643) (1,635) (2,135) 254,737
1,331,523 (152,031) 155,117 - 1,334,609
1,711,673 (273,674) 153,482 (2.135) 1,589,346
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IFRS IAS 16
2020
3
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
1ASB -
IFRS 16
- IBOR
2021
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
IBOR
IBOR
2021 12
IBOR
IBOR 2021 12

IAS 37
2022
EU
IFRS IFRS 16 -
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
1ASB IBOR
IFRS
IBOR
EURIBOR E
RFR
LIBOR 2021 12 31
2023
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
IBOR
LIBOR
1BOR
EURIBOR IBOR EURIBOR
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LIBOR LIBOR
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2022 31
* *
LIBOR - 10,846 35,801
2.6
1ASB
1AS IFRS
1AS
1AS
2023
EU
1AS
2021 12 1ASB 1AS
2023
EU
1AS
2020 23 1ASB 1AS
a)
b)
c) 2023
EU
IAS 12
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16,656 18,392
23 10
16,679 18,402
2022 31 2021 31
(113) (143)
(28) “43)
(13,080) (16,205)
(€D) ®3)
(13,222) (16,394)
2022 31 2021 31
(717) (866)
(717) (866)
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AAA
BBB+
BB+

cC

BBB-
BB-
B+

2022 31
241 -
2,163,323 256
120,416 -
2,283,980 256
2021 31
557 -
2,458,808 111
115,240 -
2,574,605 111
2022 31 2021 31
223,181 183,149
(60,610) (38,840)
162,571 144,309

ccC
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AAA / A- 151,163 - - 151,163
BBB+ / BBB- 2,012,160 - - 2,012,160
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cce - - - -
cC/D - - - -
2,163,323 - - 2,163,323
(256) - - (256)
2,163,067 - - 2,163,067
2021 31

ABA / A- 276,385 - - 276,385
BBB+ / BBB- 2,182,423 - - 2,182,423
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cce - - - -
cC /D - - - -
2,458,808 - - 2,458,808
(111) - - (111)
2,458,607 - - 2,458,697

2021 110 1 111

(110) ) (111)

219 37 256

2022 31 219 37 256
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110 1 111

2021 31 110 1 111

2022 31 2021 31

108,327 168,031

2,128 3,936

110,455 171,967

23
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(109,496) (171,229)
(109, 496) (171,229)
2022 31 2021 31
27 - 1,053
27 95 142
95 1,195
2018 2022 31 APA
2019
APA NHI APA
NH1
NHI APA
1,053
2022 31 2021 31
(148) (143)
@n @n
(18) (18)
(193) (188)

10
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2022 31 2021 31
(518) (486)
(1,005) (1,202)
(42) (55)
@n (35)
(112) (112)
O ®
(1,708) (1,898)
2022 31 2021 31
(21) (21)
(21) (34)
(42) (55)
2022 31 2021 31
(336) (267)
@ 1
20 86
- 130
117) 11
(435) (61)
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2022 31 2021 31
1,748 1,067
(451) (267)
2 1
20 86
- 130
) (11)
(435) (61)
25.8 25 26.06
21.7
2022 31 2021 31
122 (51)
452 516
(338) (266)
1 an
237 122
(2,579) (3,062)
(513) 809
(83) (445)
- 130
117 11)
(3,292) (2,579)
2022 31 2021 31
(3,832) (3,215)
476 610
64 26
(3,292) (2,579)
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13
2022 31
2,161,431 - - - 2,161,431
- 223,181 - - 223,181
241 - - - 241
- 16 120,416 - - - 120,416
2,282,088 223,181 - - 2,505,269
- - 202,573 - 202,573
- - - 1,162,533 1,162,533
- - 787,126 - 787,126
- 249,430 - - 249,430
- 21 - - 60,610 - 60,610
- 249,430 1,050,309 1,162,533 2,462,272
2021 31
2,457,199 - - - 2,457,199
- 183,149 - - 183,149
557 - - - 557
- 16 115,240 - - - 115,240
2,572,996 183,149 - - 2,756,145
- - 254,737 - 254,737
- - - 1,334,609 1,334,609
- - 896,182 - 896,182
- 192,736 - - 192,736
- 21 - - 38,840 - 38,840
- 192,736 1,189,759 1,334,609 2,717,104
14
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2022 31 2021 31

33,125 27,068

25,458 34,883

43,656 39,223

119,685 79,248

1,257 2,727

223,181 183,149

120,026 111,642

26,187 28,107

94,129 48,912

4,853 2,383

4,235 1,692

249,430 192,736

2022 31 2021 31

701,764 1,144,041

596,528 801,529

511,742 506,968

108,000 37,000

187,316 223,162
2,105,350 2,712,700

16 21
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15
16
5,27
17
454
454 113,000

oOoOooodn

2022 31 2021 31
1
1
2022 31 2021 31
120,416 115,240
1,743 2,648
122,159 117,888
1SDA
315,000
2022 31 2021 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
136.270 129.775
6,991 6,658
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2022 31 2021 31
8,402 8,402
6,991 6,658
1,411 1,744
373
18
5,300
19
a.
2022 31 2021 31
242,203 315,818
(29,460) (46,207)
(50,728) (25,598)
(409) (1,810)
161,606 242,203
b.
2022 31 2021 31
12,534 64,332
(20,397) (75,436)
50,728 25,598
(1,898) (1,960)
40,967 12,534
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3,239

440,941
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2022 31 2021 31
797,915 917,855
322,935 243,222
(212,639) (176,719)
(158,307) (206,246)
10,207 1,162
(36,572) 16,110
(2,297) 3,375
252 (844)
721,494 797,915
2022 31 2021 31
536,694 413,668
232,727 549,204
(516,118) (767,738)
158,307 206,246
9,023 12,378
19,532 124,004
308 (164)
566 (904)
441,039 536,694
1,989
14,851
12,862
24
OCA
313,456 374,989
498,852
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2022 31 2021 31
60,610 38,840
3,081 3,382
63,691 42,222

1SDA
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22
371,413
241,613
23
CRO
CFO cco
EMB
BRC
EMB
EMB GRMC
GRMC
GRMC
GRMC
NHI EMB
GRMC EMB
GRMC GPC
CRO CRO
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CFO EMB

CCo LCC

LCC

GRMC
CRO CFO CCo
CRO CFO CCo EMB GRMC

LCC
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ooooooo
CRM
CRM
CRM
NHI
NHI  S&P
BBB+
S&P

NHI
1SDA
2.3 e

27
EMB
30
(€)) @
(€)) O]
®) ©)
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EMB NHI - CFO EMB

70.46 64.06
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2022 31
30 90
30 90
- 962,340 1,025,302 146,035 250,392 - 2,384,069
- 962,340 1,025,302 146,035 250,392 - 2,384,069
- 962,340 1,025,302 146,035 250,392 - 2,384,069
2021 31
30 90
30 90
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
2022 31
30 90
30 90
- 2,321 3,090 27,375 30,739 162,421 225,946
249,750 20,435 32,357 228,916 481,612 402,794 1,415,864
- 391,338 397,160 - - - 788,498
- 243,836 7,088 120,489 - - 371,413
249,750 657,930 439,695 376,780 512,351 565,215 2,801,721
249,750 657,930 439,695 376,780 512,351 565,215 2,801,721
2021 31
30 90
30 90
- 4,301 1,072 9,563 66,820 195,677 277,433
231,317 23,034 130,243 194,460 456,227 491,142 1,526,423
- 314,057 583,669 - - - 897,726
- 237,180 4,434 - - - 241,614
231,317 578,572 719,418 204,023 523,047 686,819 2,943,196
231,317 578,572 719,418 204,023 523,047 686,819 2,943,196
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2022 31
30 )
30 L))
141,357 2,800 5,436 19,049 30,313 46,168 245,123
141,357 2,800 5,436 19,049 30,313 46,168 245,123
- 633,669 267,778 18,958 112,320 75,623 1,108,348
- (638,413) (254,120) (31,852) (117,544) (93,677)  (1,135,606)
- @,744) 13,658 (12,894) G.224) (18,054) (27,258)
141,357 (1,944) 19,094 6,155 25,089 28,114 217,865
2021 31
30 )
30 2
76,016 1,632 6,740 25,578 33,992 50,884 194,842
76,016 1,632 6,740 25,578 33,992 50,884 194,842
- 1,747,518 314,343 19,831 102,355 111,421 2,295,468
- (1,735,458) (312,091) (19,850) (127,115) (114,159)  (2,308,673)
- 12,060 2,252 (19) (24,760) (2.738) (13,205)
76,016 13,692 8,992 25,559 9,232 48,146 181,637
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ORM EMB GRMC

ORM 1) 2) 3)

ORM

ORM
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2022 31
247,880 247,957 -
161,606 156,879 -
2021 31
242,203 237,207 -
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2022 31 2021 31
223,181 - 192,230 30,951 183,149 - 144,028 39,121
33,125 - 23,563 9,562 27,068 - 18,312 8,756
25,458 - 6,431 19,027 34,883 - 10,224 24,659
43,656 - 41,597 2,059 39,223 - 34,507 4,716
119,685 - 119,685 - 79,248 - 79,248 -
1,257 - 954 303 2,727 - 1,737 990
223,181 - 192,230 30,951 183,149 - 144,028 39,121
2022 31 2021 31
249,430 - 211,803 37,627 192,736 - 151,685 41,051
120,026 - 111,065 8,961 111,642 - 102,546 9,096
26,187 - 5,292 20,895 28,107 - 2,745 25,362
94,129 - 86,484 7,645 48,912 - 42,659 6,253
4,853 - 4,853 - 2,383 - 2,383 -
4,235 - 4,109 126 1,692 - 1,352 340
1,162,533 - 876,348 286,185 1,334,609 - 930,877 403,732

1,411,963 - 1,088,151 323,812 1,527,345 - 1,082,562 444,783
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2022 31
39,121 41,051 403,732
11,406 (12,402) 15,473
_ - 420,014
(17,994) 16,647 (325,348)
230 4,030 39,789
(1,812) (11,699) (267,475)
30,951 37,627 286,185
3,135 (7,322) 83

2021 31
49,423 54,355 186,485
(30, 249) (16,209) 34,340
- - 433,376
21,087 (8,086) (257,733)
407 12,259 92,108
(1,547) (1,268) (84,844)
39,121 41,051 403,732
7,609 (4,016) (9,452)
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183

11,683

1,274

632

0TC
230 407 4,030
448
3,727
1,812 1,547 11,699
1,220

11,654

77/204

EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

12,259

1,269



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn
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2022 31

*
9,562 8,961 DCF %) 13.22-13.93%
19,027 20,895 DCF 0.31-2.89%
%) 9.20-13.93%
(bp) 41.17-75.72
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
2,059 7,645 DCF 0.00-6.63%
) 5.37-97.04%

-1.0 to 1. -0.71-0.
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.71-0.93
303 126 DCF 0.24-

®%)  1.3%
) 35-35%
- 286,185 DCF
0.31-2.89%
%) 9.20-13.93%
(bp) 41.17-75.72
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
%) 0.00-6.63%
%) 5.37-97.04%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.71-0.93
) 0.24-1.39%
%) 35-35%
30,951 323,812
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Ogoooood
2021 31
*
8,756 9,096 DCF %)  12.09-13.03%
24,659 25,362 DCF 0.12-2.23%
D) 9.57-13.12%
(bp) 29.60-77.01
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
4,716 6,253 DCF 0.00-6.77%
%)  13.83-82.31%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.69-0.96
990 340 DCF 0.24-1.39%
35-35%
- 403,732 DCF

0.12-2.06%
D) 9.57-13.12%
(bp) 29.60-77.01
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
0.00-6.77%
(%)  13.83-82.31%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.69-0.96
0.24-1.39%
35 -35%

39,121 444,783
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193 347

2022 31 2021 31

347 512

(154) (165)
193 347
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25
2022 31
() (©)) (©)

202,666 202,666 (121,363) (60,610) 20,693

86,636 86,636 - - 86,636

289,30; 289,30; (121,36;) (60,616) 107,32;

237,496 237,496 (121,363) (115,666) 467

237,49é 237,49& (121,36;) (115,66&) 46;

2021 31
() @ ®

157,326 157,326 (69,935) - 87,391

265,825 265,825 - - 265,825

1,840 1,840 - - 1,840

424,991 424,991 (69,935) - 355,056

176,919 176,919 (69,246) (107,673) -

690 690 (690) - -

177,609 177,609 (69,936) (107,673) -
@
@
®

1SDA
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2022 31 2021 31
6,991 6,658
1,321 1,321
1,411 1,744
9,723 9,723

202,573 254,737
161,606 242,203
40,967 12,534
1,162,533 1,334,609
721,494 797,915
441,039 536,694
787,126 896,182
787,126 896,182
2,161,955 2,495,251
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27

i NHI
12,532 ( )
1,613,500 1,862,651
NHI 209,700
233,300 NHI
12 52
ii. NHI
715
NHI 715
iii. APA
APA
1,053
NHI
401 406
NHI 201
i
5,867
548,187
8,313
157
i
iii. ISDA
202,666 237,496
176,919
21
16,036
1,647 2,712
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10
NHI
862
1,053
594,659
14,698

oOoOooodn

,491
862
NHI
203
6,165
161,713
26
157,326
ISDA
16
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14,389

118

92

16 21

28

2022

20

1,313

23

11,986
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

INCOME STATEMENT

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense
Met interest income

Fee and commission expense

Credit impairment gain/(loss)

Met trading income/(loss)

Met gain/(loss) on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss
Cther operating gains/({losses)

MNet operating income

Salaries and social charges
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Profit/{loss) before tax
Taxation expense

Profit/{loss) for the year

Mote

v
3F

427
527
6,24

7.24
827

9,10
127

12

12

86/204

2022 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
16,679 18,402
(13,222) {16,394)

3457 2,008

(717) (866)

{145) 78

110,455 171,967
{109,496) {171,229)

a5 1.195

3649 3153

(193) (188)

(1,708) (1,898)

(1,801) (2,088)

1.748 1,067

(435) (61)

1,313 1,008
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,313 1,006
Other comprehensive incomef{loss):
Herns that will not be reclassified to income slatement:
Change in fair value attributable to change in the
credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value
throwgh profit or loss {after tax) 1,439 (2,678)
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year
after tax 1,439 (2,678)
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year 2,752 (1,672)

13
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Mon-current assets

Loans and advances to affiliates
Derivative financial assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans and advances 1o affiliates
Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Income tax receivable

Other current assets

Total cumrent assets

Total assels

Shareholder's equity and liabilities

Shareholder's equity
Issued and paid-up capital
Share premium

Reserve

Retained earnings

Total shareholder's equity

MNon-current liabilities

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilties
Deferred tax habilities

Total non-current habilities

Current liabilities

Borrowing from affiliates

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities

Cther liabilties

Total cumrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Total shareholder's equity and liabilities

MNote

5,13,23,24 2527
51314 23 24,2527
16

5.13,23,25.37
5131423242537
2131527
12
2131627

1726

18

131923242627

13,2023, 24 2637

13,14,23,24 2527
12

13,23.25.27
131823227

132023242827

13,14, 23,24 2537
1321,

2022 2021

Millions of JBY Millions of JPY
247 880 -
31,226 57,348
1 3

279107 57,351
1,913,551 2,457,199
191 855 125,801
241 557
237 122
122,158 117,688
2,228,143 2,701,967
2,507 250 2758018
6,991 6,658
1,321 1,341
12,430 11,380
17,863 16 484
38,605 35,853
181,606 242,203
721,494 797,915
140,222 144 167
3,292 2,578
1,026.614 1,186,864
787 126 896,182
40,967 12,534
441,039 535,694
109,208 48 56809
63,6581 42 222
1,442,031 1,536,201
2,458,645 2723065
2,507,250 2,758,918

Staterment of Financial Position is presented after appropriation of profit.

14

88/204

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

Gl
£58'5E Fer'al L't 9t9'6 LZE'L 59'9
lgoe's) {oog's) = = = =
- - (1#8) 8 4
(2491 GEZ'L - (196'z) = =
2.9'2) £8g - (196°Z) - -
a00'L a00' L - - - -
8T8V SEY'0Z S8Z'T L09°T) 2L ILL'9
Al 10 SUDIW Al J0 SUoliy Al JO SUBIIA Al 0 SUGIIY Adr Jo sudiiy A Jo suonpy
Aunba shu|lIEs 28584 UOIE|SUBI) anasal wnnuaid aueys [enden
5 laployaleys |ejol pauelay Aauauns Hpald UM .u:pu...m_ﬂ pUe panss|
S09'8% £98'L1 LLE'E GLO'LE LZE'L L56'9
- - (ggg) - - £EE
ST [FE - £Lg'L - -
BEV'L 99 - £Lg'1 -
gLE'L EIE'L - - - -
£se'se reral el 9y9's 122’1 8599
Adr Jo sunliln Adr Jo susiin Adl Jo SUDIW Adl Jo SUDIIN Adr Jo suoiig Adrl Jo suony
funba sBulles anlasal UonEe|suel anlasal wnnuaid aueys lendea
s Jaployaueys |ejoL pauelay Koauaung WPBID UMD dn-pied pue panss|

ALIND3A NI SFDONYHD 40 LNIWILYLS

‘AN IONYNI4 340U N3 YHNNON

20T YMEW LE 1B SY
Slapjoyaleys o) ped spuamang
uonenes abueyoxa
jEndes paiguiwouap aung
(ss0|)/awoau
anisuayasdwos (B0
(ss0))/awoou)

ansuayaud o 8o
pouad ayy o) (ssofauoid
loz'll

sal0N) 0202 1udy | e sy

ZTOZ YW LE1e sy
siapjoyalieys o) pied spuapiag
uonenjes abueyaxa

|epdes pajeuLoUap QIng
(ss0))yewosu)
anisuayasdwos |eyol

(g0 /awoaul

anlsuayaad oD Jauic

pouad ayy o) (ssoljueld
@zl

SHON) LZOT Mdy | e sy

89/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

al

‘anasal |efa) e jou
S1 Sa5al PRI Umo 3] puEL JALYLD Ul LG TapoD WD Y2Ing Syl Jo 7 Joog § UBd UM SIUERIOI0E Ul aatasal BB ajgeinguisip-ucu B 5| anasal uojjejsuel) Aouaund ay)

(V20T yosel 1§ papua Jealk ay) so) Alasgaadsal xe) Jaye Sso| UBIW LSE'T Adr PUE xe} Jaye uieb vow g8z Adr)
‘EEOZ UMEW LE papus Jeak Gyl o) (SSofeLoa aasuayaiilios Jayio Jo ped SB aANESES JPEID LMD Japun papiosad 51 xe) Jaye web uoniw g8t AP J0 JUNOLWE Jipa
LMD PazZI|ealun auyj pue (ssofl/awomn sasuayasdiwog Jayn jo ped se sBuiues paureliey Japun papiooad S| Xey Jaye wed uoypw oo Adr 40 JUNCLUE JPed UMe pazijesl ay)

‘AN IONYNI4 340U N3 YHNNON

90/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profit’{loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Met (gain)loss from financing activities
Met (gainloss from movements in defered tax
Others

Operating assels and operating liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances 1o
affiiates
Increasef{decrease) in bormowing from affiliates
Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial
assels
Increasef{decrease) in dervative financial
liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in other operaling assets
Increasef{decrease) in other operating liabilities

MNet cash flows from operating activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and other bormawing
Redemption of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash flows from financing activities

Mel increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Met foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows
Interest paid

Interest received
Taxation payment

17
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Mote

13

13,1423 24

13,14,23.24

16
21

13,20,23.24
131923

13.2023,24
18

15

2022 201
Millicns of JPY Millions of JPY
1,313 1,006
152 148 869
713 (483)
(12 (33)
205,768 (14,531)
(109 058) 114,869
{40,032) (54, 773)
55,684 (87 849)
(4,388) 138,101
21,469 33,821
222,623 278,897
555 662 792,426
(49,857) (121,643)
(728,757) (944 45T)
= {5,300)
{222,952) (278,974)
(329) {77
13 14
557 G600
241 557
2022 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
{13,357) (17,127
16,545 18,560
(452) {518)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Momura Europe Finance NV, (the “Company™) i5 & wholly owned subsidiary of Namura Holdings, Ine.
("NHI"), a company incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of America and Singapone,
which is also the ullimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Metherands, 15 a mited liability company
under the Dutch law and its registered office is al Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam,
fhe Metherlands (Chamber of Commerce number 33221661),

The Company’s principal activity is 1o act a5 a funding entity for NHI and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Momura Group”).

The Company’s financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2022 shall be submitted to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on 12 July 2022 for adoption. The shareholder's meeting can reject the
financial statements but cannot amend them.

2. Accounting policies
21 Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporing Standards ("IFRS") as adopied by the European
Union ("EU%). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the requirements
in Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments and financial labilities designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all been
measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and all values are rounded to the
nearest million ("Millions of JPY") except where otherwise stated,

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assats and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures,

Fair value of financial instruments

A significant amount of judgements and estimates were applied to the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial Babilities. Various valuation techniques are used to determine fair values of financial assets
and financial iabilties, whera these fair values cannot be derved from an active markel. Observable market
data is used in the valuation models as far as feasible. If no observable data is available, a degree of
judgement is required to determine fair values. Detailed information about the fair value of financial
instruments and valuation technigues are set out in Mote 24,

Impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at
fair value through prafit or loss, together with loan cammitments and financial guarantee contracts on a
forward-looking basis. The Company recognises a loss allowance at each reponting date. Detailed
infermation about the judgements and estimates made by the Company when calculating expected
credit losses are set oul in Mote 2.3,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Foreign curmmencies

The financial statements are presented in JPY, which is the funclional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
fransaction.

Subsequent to initial recognition monetary items are translated at closing rate and non-monetary items at
histerical spot rate at each reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assels and
financial liabities that are monetary assets and monetary liabiliies are recognised in the income
statement.

b)  Operating income
{i) Interest income and expense

Interast income and expense for all financial instruments, excepl for those classified as dervatives held for
trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised under Inferest
and similar incorme or Inferest and similar expense using the effective interest rate "EIR") method.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or a group
of assets and liabilities) and of allocating the inferest income or interest expense over the relevant
perods. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the expected fulure cash paymenis or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the instrument. This calculation takes inte account the impact of all fees and
commissions, paid or received, directly attributable to the transactions, and discounts or premiums that
are integral pan of the EIR method,

{iny Met fees and commission income

Loan ongination fees are recognised in the income statement as an adjustment to the yield on the financial
assels camied at amonised cost using the EIR method.

Upfront fees received and paid on dervative financial instruments are recognised as part of the initial fair
value measurement of the related financial instrument.

c) Fair value of financial instruments
Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value. & description of the Company’s
palicies with regards to s application of fair value measurements to significant financial instruments is
as follows:
1] Determination of fair values and fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet
date. For other financial instruments which are measured at amaortised cost, fair values are disclosed in
Mote 24,
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market paricipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where guoted market prices or broker/dealer quotations are not available for financial instruments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair
walue, Such financial instruments ane valued using models with significant unobserable inputs such as
cormelation, leng-dated wolatility, or other unobservable inputs.  Valuation pricing models consider
contractual terms, position size, underlying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time value,
volatility and other statistical measurements for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
characteristics. These models also incorporate adjustiments relating to market liquidity adjustments.
These adjustments are fundamental componenis of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
technique used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of Company-specific inputs
which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing medels and their undedying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealised
gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying assumptions
could produce different financial results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and foreign exchange
and commodity markets can impact the Company's esfimates of fair value in the future, polentially
affecting trading gains and losses and also gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. The Company's estimates of fair value may involve greater subjectivity due
to the lack of transparent market data available upon which to base assumplions of underying valuation
pricing madels,

The Company applies exception in IFRS 13.48 to measure the fair value of financial assels and financial
liabilities on the basis of mid-price. For hybrid instruments where embedded derivatives are separated
and finangial instruments which are designated through profit or loss, the exposure on such instruments
is offset by the hedging derivatives.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting and all references to hedging in the notes to the
financial statements are 10 economic hedging.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held
for trading are recognised under Nef frading income/{loss).

{iny Recognition of day 1 gains and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of
censideration grven or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
avaluation pricing model incorporating only observable parameters in the market or on other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument. without modification or repackaging. Where such
valuation technigues are used o derve fair values from markel observable inputs, the difference
between fair value and the transaction price is initially recognised in the income statement.

Waluation techniques incorporating significant unobservable parameters may also be wsed (o determine
fair value at inceplion. Im such cases, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
anly recognised in the income statement when the inputs become observable or when the instrument
is derecognised,

(i) Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Company Seeks to minimize the market risks by entering into derivative agreements to
economically hedge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging derivative and the
associated note have the same performance which offset each ather, thus by applying the fair value
aption {"FVO7) to notes the Company expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation
volatility,

Starting from 1 April 2018, the Company applies the FVO to all newly issued notes under IFRS 9. The
Company manages and evaluates performance of financial liabilities (issued notes) in such a way that the

rmeasurement of the portfolio of notes at fair value through profit or loss provides more relevant information
for risk managememt purposes and transparent understanding of the Company's financial statements.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

d) Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 are divided into three classifications; those measured
at amorised cost, those measured at fair value through profit or loss and those measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss, and all other financial
liabilties are measured at amortised cost unless the FVO is applied.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition except equity
instruments and derivatives based on a combination of the entity's business model for managing the
assels and the instruments’ contractual cash flow charactenstics. Even though the Company’s financial
assels may meet the criteria to be classified al amonised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Company may, at initial recognition, apply the FVO to those financial assets if doing so
eliminates ar significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as “accounting mismatch™) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
gains and losses on them on different bases.

{iy Financial assels

IFRS 9 requires all financial assels, except equily instruments and derivatives, lo be assessed based
on a combination of the enlity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’
contractual cash flow charactenistics, A financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at
amorized cost, unless designated under FVO, if the financial asset is held in a Hold to Collect business
model and the contractual cash flows are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest,

Under this measurement category, the financial asset is measured at fair value at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amorization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any
impaiment allowance.

Business model:
There are three business models identified under IFRS @ for financial assets:
- Hold to Collect - Financial assets held with the objective to collect contraciual cash flows.

— Hold to Collect and Sell - Financial assets held with the objective of both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

= Other - Financial assets held with trading intent or that do not meet the "Hold to Collect™ and "Hold to
Collect and Sell” qualifying critenia.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. Factors considered by the Company in determining
the business model for a group of assets include how the cash flows from these assels were collected,
how risks are assessed and managed, how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel and the frequency, value and timing of sales,

The Company manages a portfolio of financial assets through the Hold to Collect business model where

all of the following criteria are met:

- The portfolio is not held with trading intent or not managed on a fair value basis;

- The portfolio of financial assets s managed 1o realise cash flows solely through collecting contractual
payments over the life of the financial assets rather than managing the overall return on the porifolio by
both holding and selling financial assets; and

- Any sales of financial assets are expacted to be infrequent or insignificant,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI):

To meet the Hold to Collect business model, the portfolio of financial assets are to be held by the
Company with the strategy of collecting cash flows from the financial assets specified by contractual
terms of the instrument. A financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost where the contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Principal for purpose of the SPPI test is defined as the fair value of the debt instrument at initial
recognition and therefore the contractual cash flow characleristics is determined based on a comparison
of contraciual cash flows to the amount actually invested. It is not necessarily the contractual par amount
aof the debt instrument,

The most significant elements of interest within a basic lending arrangement are that it is consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. Interest may also include a profit margin.

(i Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amorised cost include the host contract of certain medium termm notes that are
bifurcated and other borrowings. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the
date when the Company becomes a party 1o the contract. After initial measurement, these instruments
are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method.

(i} Financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial iabilities classified in this categary are those that have been designated by management as
al fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates, or
significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arse from measunng the assets
or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

These instruments are measured initially at fair value and transaction cosis are recognised in profit or
loss, Far these instruments, fair value changes attributable to the Company’s credit risk are presented
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss, thereby eliminating wolatility in
profit or loss in relation to own credit adjustments. All other fair value changes are presented in profit or
loss. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs
associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under
Net gainfgloss) on financial Habilities designafed at fair value through profit or loss, except for the
currency translation effect which is included in Net frading incomedloss).

Loan commitments designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are within the
scope of IFRS 9. These loan commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gaindloss) on fnancial labilities designated af fair vaiuve through profif or loss.

(W)  Dervative financial instruments

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include derivative financial instrumenis held for
trading. Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if (1) they are acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2) on initial recognition
they are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (3) they are derivatives, excepl
for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective hedging instrument.

The Company uses derivatives 1o economically hedge its interest and foreign exchange. All denvatives
are recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract, Derivatives held for
frading are initially and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Derivatives with positive and negative fair values are presented as assels and liabilities,
respectively, in the statement of financial position.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host that is nol a
financial asset s accounted for as a separate denvative if (1) i econamic charactenstics and nsks are
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

not closely related 1o those of the host; (2) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (3) the hybrid instrument is not measured at fair
walue with changes in fair value recognised in profit or l0ss,

Initial measurement of financial instruments

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial iability not at fair value through profit ar
loss, transaction costs that are direcily attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.

Darecognition

A financial assel is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or
when the Company has transferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel. A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires,

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

e) Impairment

Under IFRS 9, the Company is required to record a loss allowance for expected credit losses for all
loans and other debt instruments not held at fair value throwegh profit or loss, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The loss allowance is measured based on the
expected credit losses that resull from default events an a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
arigination, in which case, the loss allowance is measwred based on the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Application of the general expected credit loss "ECL”™) impairment model:

Expected credit losses should be determined using all reasonable and supportable information which
i5 reasonably available at the Company's reporting date without undue cost or effort, incleding
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
information used should reflect factors that are specific to the obligor, general economic conditicns and
an assessment of both the cument as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the Company's
reporting date, Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is always considered to be
available without undue cost or effor.

The general ECL impairment model is used 10 measune expected credit losses against the majority of
financial instruments held by the Company which are subject to impairment through the ECL impainment
model under IFRS 9,
Expected credit losses represent the difference between the cash flows that the Company is entitled to
receive in accordance with the contractual terms of the financial instrument and the cash flows that the
Company ullimately expects to receive based on following model,

The measurement of expected credit losses under the ECL mpaimment model reflects:

« Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that s determined by evaluating a range of possible

outeomes;
«  The time value of money; and

+ Reasonable and supporable informalion that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reparting date about past events, curent conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that would result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument whereas 12 month expected credit
losses are the portion of [ifetime expected credit losses that represent the expected credil losses that
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date,

In erder to determine whether 12 month or lifetime expected credit losses are used, each financial asset
and off-balance sheet financial instrument being individually or collectively assessed for impaimment is
classified at each reporing date into one of following three stages of credit quality deterioration since
the financial asset was initially recognised.

« Stage 1 - Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in credit
quality since initial recognition;

- STEQ-& 2 - Urrderper‘fon‘ning financial assels for which there has been a s'rgn'rl'rc-anl deteriaration in
credit quality since intial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

+ Stage 3 — Mon-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaired.

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1
and is typically subsequently conlinuously monitored o determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred, at which point the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2. A delermination
of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporling date will primarily be
through a comparison of Nomura Group's intermnal credit rating applied to the financial instrumeant at
acquisition, origination or issuance and the intermal credit rating currently assigned to the financial
instrument at the reporting date. A financial instrument will be reclassified into stage 2 where the internal
credit rating has declined by more than a specific number of notches (one to four) depending on the
lewvel of rating assigned at initial recognition. If there is a further deterioration in credit quality such that
the financial instrument becomes credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then reclassified into stage
3

Internal ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid 1o long-term capability and cerainty
of debt repayment (creditworhiness) in addition to the fundamental conditions (fundameantals) of a given
obligor or facility. Intemal ratings are reviewed regularly and on an ad-hoc basis, to ensure that the
creditworthiness of a given obligor will be duly and timely taken into account,

A stage 3 financial asset can only be classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1
when it no longer meets the definition of being credit-impaired, namely when it is no longer probable
that the Company will not be able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with
the original or modified contractual terms of the financial asset.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
astimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since origination or purchase namely
and it is no longer probable that the Company will be able to collect all principal and interest amounts
due in accordance with the confraciual terms of the financial assel. The Company considers a financial
instrument defaulted (which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of
an obligor to make payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous
modification to a contractual term compared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or
other similar situations. In addition, there is a rebuttable presumption that regardless of the above
definition, defaull is deemed to occur and a financial instrument 15 credit-impaired when the financial
instrument is 90 days or more past due.

A financial instrument will continue to be credit-impaired until the obligor cures the reasons for credit-
impairment or there has been a sustained observable penod of repayment performance on the financial
instrument. Determination of whal constitutes a sustained period of repayment peformance by the
abligor depends on the nature of the financial instrument but wall typically be for a period of & months or
Mone,
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The allowance for expected credit losses recognised against stage 1 financial assets is determined
using 12 month expected credit losses. Conversely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 3 financial
assels s based on lifetime expected credil losses,

Credit-impaired financial instruments individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when
further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonable means of recovering
outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligors financial position such that the
abligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay
amounts due.

A write off of a financial instrument such as a loan, receivable or debt security reduces the gross carrying
amount of the financial instrument, Write-offs are initially recognised against any existing allowance for
expecied credit losses and can relate to a financial instrument in its entirety or to a podicn of it.

Recoveries are recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected credit losses recognised through
eamings during the reporting periad.

Forstage 1 and stage 2 financial instruments, interest income is recognised during the reporting period
at an amount determined by applying the effective interest rate to the gross cammying amount of the
financial instrument.

For stage 3 financial assets, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate ("EIR") to
net camying amount of the financial asset namely the gross camying amount less the allowance for
expected credit losses,

The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL impairment model is typically
determined within the Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on
the relevant staging of the financial instrument. A loss rate model measures expecied credit losses for
an individual or portfolio of similar financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated
through an estimate of the probability of default (*PD") of the obligor and loss given default ("LGID")
which is applied 1o the expected credit exposure of the obligor at default (*CEAD™). CEAD represents
the expected amount of credit exposure {i.& amount owed to the Company) at the paint that the financial
instrument defaults.

PO inpuls are determined by class of financial instrument and by intemal Momura credit rating applied
to the financial instrument. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and
validated based on historical experence. PD inputs are prepared by referring to S&P's historic rating
migration data and PD is calculated over the next 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over
the entire lifetime for stage 2 and 3 instruments.

Fomward-looking information is incorporated into the PD inputs by forecasting economic scenanos and
adjusting the base case inputs for at least one optimistic and pessimistic scenario.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical experience of loss
recovery rates for similar financial instruments and other relevant industry data, LGD inputs are adjusted
to reflect the impact of collateral and integral credit enhancements.

Far revalving and non-revolving koan commitments, the relevant absalute measure of CEAD represents
an estimate of the total amount of the facility which will be drawn by the obligor by the time of default.
This therefore includes any portion of the facility currently funded and an additional adjustment based
an a conversion factor 1o estimate of further amounts which may be drawn.

Cash flows expeciled from collateral and other credit enhancements that are integral to contractual

terms of the financial instrument and not recognised separately by the Company are included in the
measurement of expected credit losses.,
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) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilties are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company intends to
settle the financial asset and financial liability on a net basis.,

gl Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash in banks.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, Net (gainloss from financing aclivilies are non-cash items
which include the effects of foreign exchange results, amonisation of debt issued and olher borowing using
the effective interest rate method and FAVO valuation.

The movement in the Deferred lax assets and iabifties is included in the line fem, Nef (gainMoss from
movaments in deferred tax while the movement in the income 1ax receivable(payable) is included in the
line #ems Decreasedincrease) in other operaling assels and Increasefddecrease) in ofher operating
liabilifies. Both these line tems are presented under Net cash flows from operating activities.

h) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured as the amount expected o
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are recognised for temporary difference between the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
as of the reporting date,

2.4 Operating segment

The Company has omanised s business activities based on s products and services, As the Company
only engages in one operating segment of financing activity, the gross and net assets and profitloss before
laxabon as presanted in the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment. The majonty
of the debt is issued o Japanese investors. All loan payables, loan receivables and derivatives, except for
derivatives embedded in some of the medium term notes, are transacted with Nomura Group.

25 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estimates are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the following amendments to standards that have become effective and are relevant to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations; 143 16 Properly, Plant and Equipment; 145 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, Annual Improvements 2018-2020

The package of amendments includes narrow-scope amendments to three Standards as well as the
Beard's Annual Improvements, which are changes that clarify the wording or commect minor
consequences, oversights or conflicts between requirements in the Standards, All amendments are
effective 1 January 2022 with early adoption possible. The amendmenis are endorsed by EU during the
year ended 31 March 2022,

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.
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Amendments to IFRS 9, 145 39, IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase
2

IASE has published 'Inferest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS
7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 168)" with amendments which relate to the modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements, and disclosure requirements
applying IFRS 7 to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

Modiffication of financial assets, financial iabiities and lease Nabilities: The IASE introduced a practical
expedient for modifications required by the reform (modifications required as a direct consequence of
the IBOR reform and made on an economically equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
far by updating the effective interast rate, All other modifications are accounted for using the current
IFRS requirements. A similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting applying IFRS 16.

Hedge accounting requirements: Under the amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued solely
because of the IBOR reform. Hedging relationships must be amended to reflact modifications to the
hedged item, hedging instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements.

Disclosures: The amendments require that an entity discloses information about:

= how the fransition from interest rate benchmarks to alternative benchmark rates is managed, the
progress made at the reparting date, and the risks arising fram the transition;

- qguantitative information about non-derivative financial assets, non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivatives that continue 1o reference interest rate benchmarks subject to the reform, disaggregated
by significant interest rate benchmark;

- tothe extent that the |BOR reform has resulted in changes o an entity’s risk management strategy,
a description of these changes and how is the entity managing those risks.

The amendments are effective for annwal perods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier
application permitted.

Interbank offered rates have been widely used as benchmarks to set interest rates of financial products
and contracts. In line with the recommendations from the Financial Stabilly Board, a fundamental
review of these imporant interest rales benchmarks has been underaken. \While some interest
benchmarks have been reformed, such as EURIBOR, others such as EQNIA and LIBOR have or will
be replaced by risk-free rates ("RFR") and discontinued,

GBP, CHF, JPY, and EUR LIBOR rates ceased on 31 December 2021, whereas the most used USD
LIBOR tenors will continue o be published until the end of June 2023 to support legacy products. The
USD LIBOR extension was seen as a welcome step given the range and volume of USD LIBOR
contracts in the financial markets and has bought time for the markets to develop and assess the
atternatives to USD LIBOR. The use of USD LIBOR for new contracts is (subject to very limited
exceplions) no longer permitted.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Nomura Group, including the Company, focused on Ihe
transition of non-USD LIBOR contracts and conducting new transactions using the recommended
atternatives, MNomura Group has assessed the impacts while managing IBOR transition and seeking
to mitigate nsks. Migrations for existing |IBOR positions were performed with the involvement of muliple
departments across Momura Group. As part of the fransition process, Nomura Group focused on
transitioning clients away from viable legacy IBOR contracis. In this regard, Momura Group including
the Company held transition discussions with the clients and received consent from the cliants, except
for the hokders of notes which are referring to USD LIBOR, which is still existing.

During the reporting period, the Company has completed the transition of the dervative and nole
contracts where the publication of such IBOR ended at the end of December 2021. The Company

stopped entering into new contracts referencing IBOR, except for EURIBOR, where its publication
continues. All loans referencing 1BOR, except for EURIBOR, ended by the end of December 2021,
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As of the current reporting date, Momura Group is shifting its focus to USD LIEOR, and expect 1o be
able to leverage the experience gained transitioning the other LIBOR rates.

The transitions completed as of the reporting date did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position and performance. In addition, assessments were made for the rest of the transitions
and the Company does not expect @ materdal impact on the Company's financial position and
performance.

The table below summarizes the approximate exposures of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments by significant benchmark rate which are not yet transitionad to alternative benchmarks as
af 31 March 2022. This excludes exposures of instruments that will expire before the relevant IBOR
cessation date

As of March 2022

Financial Assets non- Financial Liabilities Derivative notional
derivative® non-derivative® contract amaunt
Millions of JPY Milions of JPY Millions of JPY
By benchmark rate
UsD LIBOR - 10,845 3580

"Carmying amounts are reported for non-derivative Financial Assels and Liabilities in above table.

26 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following new standards and amendments
to the existing standards and interpretations which are likely to be applicable to the Company have
been issued by the |1ASB but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2022:

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure
of Accounting policies

The amendments change the requirements in 1AS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies.
Applying these amendments, an enfity discloses its materal accounting policies, instead of is
significant accounting policies. Further amendments to 1AS 1 are made to explain how an entity can
ientify a material accounting policy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 with eary adoplion possible, The amendments are endorsed by EU during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Company's financial position and performance,

Amendments 1o [AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of
Accounting Estimates

On 12 February 2021, |ASE issued amendments to |1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes to Accounting
Estimates and Errors, in which it infroduces a new definition of “accounting estimates™, The
amendments are designed to clanfy the distinction between changes in accounting esfimates and
changes in accounting policies and comrection of erors. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2023 with early adopticn possible. The amendmenis are
endorsed by EU during the year ended 31 March 2022,

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.
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Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Mon-current

On 23 January 2020, 1ASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentalion of Financial Statements to clarify
the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. More specifically, the amendmenis
specify that a) the conditions which exist at the end of the reporting period are those which will be used
o determine if a right to defer settlement of a liabilily exisis b) management expectations about events
after the balance sheet date, for example on whether a covenant will be breached, or whether early
settlernent will 1ake place, are not relevant c) the amendments clarify the situations that are considered
settlernent of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 with early adoplion possible. The amendments are nol endorsed by ELU yet,

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected 1o have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

Amendments 1o |AS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

The amendments require companes to recognise defered tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with early adoption
possible. The amendments are not endorsed by ELU yel.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Company's financial position and performance,

3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Interest and similar income
Loans and advances to affiliates (Mote 27) 16,656 18,392
23

Cash collateral (Mote 16) 10
16,679 18,402
For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021

Millions of JPY Millions of JBY

Interest and similar expense
Diebt issued and cther borrowing {113) (143)
Cash collateral received (Mote 21) (28) (43)
Borrowing from affiliates (Mote 27) {13,080} (16,205)
Cthers {1} ()
{13,222} (16,394}

Main reasons of the increase in Mef inferest incorme are the changes in market conditions of interest, such
as imerest rate gap between borrowing rate and lending rate where curmencies are different.
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4. Fee and commission expense

Guarantee fee paid (Note 27)

5. Expected credit loss

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
(7 (BEE)
{F17) (866

The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk and loss allowances of financial
instruments subject to impairment as of the reporting date. Cerain off-balance sheet instruments which
expose the Company to a risk of loss due to default by the parties underlying these contracts are also

disclosed.

Cash and cash equivalenis
Other debtors

Cash collateral paid (Mote 18)
Total

Cash and cash eguivalents
Cther deblors

Cash collateral paid (Mote 16)
Total

As of March 2022

Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Millions of JFY Millicns of JPY

241 -
2,183,323 256
120,416 -
2,283,980 256
As of March 2021

Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Millians of JPY Milliens of JPY

557 -
2,458,808 111
115,240 -
2,574 605 111

The following table containg an analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure from financial assets not

subject to the impairment requirements in IFRS &:

Derivative financial assets (Mote 14)
Cash collateral received (Note 21)

Total

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Carrying value Carrying value
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
223131 183,149
(B0 610 (38 840)
162,571 144,308
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Below table represents the credit risk exposure of loans by inlemal credit ratings and period end stage
classification. Intemal rating categories are splt as fallows:

1) 7 grades in high credit quality category; from AAA o A-

2) 2 grades in good credit quality category; from: BBE+ to BBE-

3) 3 grades in speculative credit quality category, from BB+ to BB-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credit quality category; from B+ to B-
5) 1 grade in substantial credit risk quality category: CCC

@) 3 grades in defaull grade category; from CCto D

Internal credit ratings are assigned taking into consideration the effects of economic fluctuations, to
assess creditworthiness of an cbligor in one year or longer from the mid to long-term perspective. In
particular, internal credit ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-lerm
capability and certainty of debt repayment in addition to the fundamental conditions of a given obligor
ar facility.

As of March 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Millians of Millians Millians Millions of
JPY of JPY of JPY JPY
Internal Credit Rating
AAA T A- 151,163 - - 151,163
BERE+/BRB- 2012160 - - 2,012,160
BB+ /BB - - - - -
B+ /B- - - - -
ccc - - - -
CC/D - - - -
Gross carrying amount 2,163,323 - - 2,163,323
Loss allowance (256) - - {256}
ﬂ'_arﬁring amount 2,163,067 - - 2,163,067
As of March 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Millions of Millions Millions Millions of
JPY of JPY of JPY JPY
Internal Credit Rating
AAA | A 276,385 - . 276,385
BBEB+/BBBE- 2,182,423 = - 2182423
BB+ /BB - - - R -
B+ B- - - - -
ccc - - - -
CC/D - - - -
Gross carrying amount 2,458,808 - - 2,458,808
Loss allowance (111) - - {111}
Carrying amount 2,458,697 - - 2,458 697
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The following table explains the changes in loss allowance

between the baginning and the end of the peniod:

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2021

Transfers to stage 1

Transfers to stage 2

Transfers to stage 3

Financial assets derecognised
during period

Mew financial assets onginated
or purchased

Write offs

Changes in modelfisk
paramelers

Foreign exchange adjustments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2022

The Company did not have any financial assets or off-balance sheel financial instruments classified as

for the Company’s financial instruments

Loans and
advanced to Loan
affiliates commitments
Stag& 1 Btage 1 Total
Millions of
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY JPY
110 1 111
{110} (1) (111)
219 T 256
219 ar 256

Stage 2 or Stage 2 during the reporting period.

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2020

Transfers to stage 1

Transfers to stage 2

Transfers to stage 3

Financial assets derecognised
during period

Mew financial assets onginated
or purchased

Write offs

Changes in modelfisk
paramelers

Foreign exchange adjustments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2021

The Company did not have any financial assets or off-balance sheet financial instruments classified as

Loans and
advanced to Loan
affiliates commitments
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Millions of
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY JPY
188 1 189
(188) (1) (189)
110 1 111
110 1 111

Stage 2 or Stage 3 during the reporting period.
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6. MNettrading incomel(loss)

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Met trading income/(loss) on derivative financial
instruments 108,327 168,031
Met foreign exchange gains 2128 3,936
110,455 171,967

The Company manages the risks arising from fluctuations in foreign cumrency exchanges and inlerest rates
with the use of dervative instruments, The gains and losses on dervatives, which are held for risk
management purpases to offset these fluctuations are incleded in Net frading ncomesfioss),

For hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging dervatives are offsel by the gains and losses on embedded derivatives. For
the instruments which are nol bifurcated, the gains and losses on hedging dervatives may cause fluctuation
in the recognition of gains and losses in Net frading incomefiloss).

The vast majority of the decrease of income in Nef frading incomediloss) for the year ended 31 March
2022 compared 1o the year ended 31 March 2021 is resulting from the hedging derivatives associated
ta the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, This decrease is largely offset
by a corresponding decrease of loss in the Net gaingloss) on financial Nabilities designated af fair value
through profit or loss (Mote T),

Risk management, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with financial
instruments, is disclosed in Mole 23,

7. Met gainf{loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Met gain/(loss) on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss (109.496) (171.229)
{109, 4596) {171,229)

Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs associated
with the financial liakilities designated at fair wvalue through profit or loss are recognised under Net
gaindloss) on financial Nabilities designated at fair value through profit or foss, except for the currency
translation effect which is included in Nef frading incomedloss) (Mote G).

This decrease of loss in Net gaingloss) on financial labilities designated af fair value through profif or

logs is largely offset by an decrease of income in Net frading incomedloss) (Mote 8) resulting from the
hedging derivatives associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

108/204



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8. Other operating gains/(losses)

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Advance pricing agreement adjustrment
{Note27) - 1,053
Other gains (Mote 27) 95 142
] 1,195

Advance pricing arrangement

The Company had a unilateral advance pricing agreement (the “Unilateral APAT for the avoidance of
double taxation in the Metherlands and in Japan, for which Dutch tax authonties approved the renewal
request on 5 June 2019 with the effective period started from 1 April 2018 and ended 31 March 2022,
For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022, NHI and the Company agreed to setile the
adjustment in line with the terms of the Unilateral AFA. The advance pricing agreement adjustment was
receivable from NHI for the year ended 31 March 2021, However, neither the Company nor NHI is
obligated to make a payment as of 31 March 2022 based on the taxable income; therefore no gains or
losses have been incurred for the year ended 31 March 2022 in relation to the Unilateral APA, (2021;
JPY 1,053 million gain was reported under Ofher operating gainsflosses)).

9. Salaries and social charges

Faor the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Salaries. (148) (143)
Pension premium (27) (27}
Social charges and welfare (18) (18}
(193) (188)

10. Number of employees

The Company had 13 employees working in the Netherlands as of 31 March 2022 (2021: 14). 7 of the 13
employees were working par lime as of 31 March 2022 (2021: 8).

11. General and administrative expenses

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Sub-contractor fees (Notes 27) {518) (48EB)
Taxes other than income tax {1,005) {1.202)
Independent auditor's expenses® (42) (55)
Cther professional fees (27) (35)
Administrative (Mote 27) {112} (112)
Others (4) (8)
{1,708) {1.898)
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*Independent audilors” expenses

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Audit (statulory) (21) (21)
Audit - other assurance services (21} (34)
(42) (55)

12. Taxation

The components of the taxation expense for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as
follows:

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JEY Millions of JEY
Current 1ax:
Current incame tax (336) (267)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax
of prior years (2) 1
Deferred tax:
Effect of change in income tax rate 20 a6
Adjustment in respact of deferred lax
of prior years - 130
Relating to temporary differences (117} {11}
Taxalion expense (435) (61)
For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Profit before tax 1,748 1,067
At Dutch statutory income tax rate (451) (267)
Adjustment in respect of cument income tax of
priar years (2) 1
Effect of change in income tax rate 20 a6
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of prior years - 130
Effect of permanent difference between taxable
income and accounting profit {2) {11}
Taxation expense (435) (B1)

The statutory income tax rate increased to 25.8% as of 1 January 2022 (2021: 25%). Effective tax rale s
26.068% (2021: 25.96%). For the year ended 31 March 2021, the previously announced reduction
{21.7%) of the Dutch corporate income tax rate was not implemented and income tax rate remained at
259% in 2021. The impact of changes in Dutch corporate income tax rate is included above in Effect of
change in income tax rate for both periods.
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The movements in the income tax receivable and deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Income tax (payable)/receivable
Beginning balance 122 (51)
Payment 452 518
Charged to income (338) (266}
COther movements 1 (77}
Ending balanca 237 122
Deferred tax assets/[liabilities)
Beginning balance (2,579) (3,082)
Deferred tax attributable to change in own credit
risk (213) a0%
Effect of change in income tax rate (83) (445)
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of prior
years - 130
Decrease related to temporary differences (117) (11)
Ending balance (3,282) (2,579)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferred taxes occur due io the
differences in tax base measurement and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the
deferred tax assels and liabilities of the Company periain to the valuation of the derivative financial
instruments and financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The components of the deferred tax recognized in the statement of financial position for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follows:

For the year ended
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millicns of JPY
Deferred tax attributable to own credit risk (3,832) (3,215)
Waluation of financial instruments 478 510
Loss allowances for financial instruments 64 26
(3,292) (2,579
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14. Derivative financial instruments

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Derivative financial assels:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 33125 27,068
Interest rate derivatives 25458 34 883
Equity derivatives 43 656 39,223
Commaodity derivatives 119,685 79,248
Credit dervatives 1,257 2,727
223181 183,149
Derivative financial liabilities:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 120,026 111,642
Interest rate derivatives 26187 28,107
Equity derivatives 94 129 48,912
Commaodity derivatives 4,853 2,383
Credit derivatives 4,235 1,602
249 430 192,736

Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current dervative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities.

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Motional amounis:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 701,764 1,144 041
Interest rate derivatives 596,528 801,529
Equity derivatives 511,742 506,968
Commaodity derivatives 108,000 37,000
Credit derivatives 187,316 223,162
2105350 2,712 700

All the above figures in tables include bifurcated embedded derivatives, Each derivative classification
includes derivatives referencing mukliple risk components. For example, interest rate contracts include
complex dervatives referencing interest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk,

All foreign exchange related derivatives and other derivatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated
embedded denvatives, are transacted with Nomura Group.

The Company uses dervalives for hedging purposes in the management of its medium term notes
portiolio. This enables the Company to mitigate the market risk and interest rate risk arising from its
assels and liabilities.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adjustments are taken into

account, The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Company exchanges cash
collateral (Notes 16 and 21).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which is unrestricted for disposal.

16. Other assets

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Other non-cument assets:
Facilities and equipment 1 3
1 3
As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Other currant assels.:
Cash collateral paid (Motes 5 and 27) 120,418 115,240
Clhers 1,743 2648
122,159 117,888

Under International Swaps and Dervatives Association (1SDA") Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts Cash collateral o dernivative counterparties related to derivative transactions.
Cthers mainly mclude accrued interest income,

17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorised share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro ("EUR") 454 par value per share.
The issued and paid-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with ELIR 454 par value per share.

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of
March 2022 March 2021

Isswed and paid-up capital at historical cost

{JPY Millions) 8402 8,402
Issued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par value per share (EUR) 454 454
Issuwed shares at par value (EUR Thowsands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 136.270 129.775
Issued and paid-up capital (JPY Milions) 5,991 6,658
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Difference between issued and paid-up capital and issued and paid-up capital at histoncal cost is presented
under reserves as follows:

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Issued and paid-up capital at historical cost 8402 8,402
Issued and paid-up capital 5,991 5,658
Translation difference 1,411 1,744

As required by Article 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dutch Civil Code the Issued and paid-up capital account
is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate from EUR
to JPY as of the reporting date. The difference between the historical cost and the carrying amount of
the issued and paid-up capital as of the reporting date is recorded under Cuwvrency fransiafion resene,
18. Dividends paid

During the year ended 31 March 2022 no dividend was paid to the shareholder of the Company, (JPY
5,300 million dividend was paid for the year ended 31 March 2021).

19. Debt issued and other borrowing

a. Mon-current debt issued and other borowing

Faor the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 242 203 315818
Redemplions (29.460) (48,207)
Reclassifications to current labilities (50,728) (25,598)
Cther movements (409) {1,810)
Ending balance 161,608 242203

b, Cumrent debt issued and other boarrowing

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JFY Millions of JFPY
Baginning balance 12,534 84,322
Redemplicns (20,387) (75,438)
Reclassifications from non-current liabilities 50,728 25,508
Cther movements (1.898) {1,960)
Ending balance 40,957 12,534

In the above tables, Other movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange results.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

a.  MNon-current financial liabilities designated al fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Beginning balance 787,915 917,855
Issues 322,935 243,222
Redemplions (212,639) (176,719)
Reclassifications to

current liabilities (158,307) (206 ,248)
Foreign exchange results 10,207 1,162
Unrealised revaluations (36,572) 16,110
Changes in own credit risk (2,297) 3375
Other movements 252 (544)
Ending balance 721,494 797,915

b. Current financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended

March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Beginning balance 536,694 413,668
Issues 232727 549,204
Redemplions (516,118) (767 ,738)
Reclassifications from

non-current liabilities 158,307 206,246
Foreign exchange results 9,023 12,378
Unrealised revaluations 19,532 124,004
Changes in own credil risk 308 (164)
Other movements SE66 (904}
Ending balance 441,039 535,694

The impact of fair value changes afiributable to the Company's own credit risk included in other
comprehensive incame/loss) on financial habilities designated at fair value through profit ar less is an
unrealised gain of JPY 1,889 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (JPY 3,239 million loss for the
financial year ending 31 March 2021). The cumulative valuation adjustments resulting from own credit
is an unrealised gain of JPY 14,851 million as of 31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 12,862 million gain). The
Company calculates the own credit spreads referring to secondary market prices.

Contractual due amounts of the notes which are issued by the Company may link to vanous indices,
For risk management purposes, the Company uses derivalive transactions to hedge the risk arnising
from the fluctuations of indices. Contractual obligations are incleded in the fair value measurement of
financial instruments by using parameters and models as of the reporing date as disclosed in Mote
24, Fair value. QOCA amounts are disclosed separately in the above.

The notes with principal protected nature have a camying amount of JPY 313,456 million and the
principal obligation of JPY 374,988 million as of 31 March 2022 (2021: carrying amount JPY 440,841
million, principal obligation JBY 498 852 million)
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21. Other liabilities

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JBY
Cash collateral recenved (Notes 5 and 27) 0610 38,540
Others 3,081 3,382
63,691 42 222

Under ISDA Credit Suppart Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collaferal from
derivative counterparties related 1o derivative transactions, Others mainly include accrued interest expense
and other accrued expenses.

22, Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Company has JPY 371,413 million unsettled kban commitments to Momura Group companies as of 31
March 2022 (2021: JPY 241,613 milkon). Unsettled loan commitments are held off balance sheet, until the
point at which they become drawn.

23. Risk management

The Company's risk management activities involve both the assessment and transfer of cerlain risks which
the Company must manage. The most impodant types of risk are market risk, credit risk, quidity nsk and
aperational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, price risk, and interest rate riek.

The Company's primary objective is to act as a financing vehicle for Nomura Group. To this end, the
Company issues debl with returns linked to a variety of different indices including but not limited to
equities, interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and commodities, The Company actively manages the
resultant risk using derivative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
nsk ansing from such instruments, The Company transacts these denvative instruments solely with
olher entities within Nomura Group.

The Company's financial instrumems include loan advances, cash collateral deposited 1o or received
from other entities within Momura Group, deb! issued and other borrowing, financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives and borrowing from affiliates.

Group Risk Appetite

Momura Group has determined the types and levels of risk that it will assume in pursuit of its strategic
abjectives and business plan and has ariculated this in its Risk Appetite Statement. This document is
jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CRQ"), the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO7) and the Chief
Compliance Officer ("CCO%) to the Executive Management Board ("EMB") for approval. It will then be
further reviewed at the Board Risk Commitlee ("BRC") through the authority 1o consent 1o the relevan
proposal raised by the executive side.

The Risk Appetite Statement provides an aggregated wiew of risk and incledes capital adequacy,
liquidity, financial risk and noen-financial risk, It is subject to regular monidaring and breach escalation as
appropriate by the owner of the relevant risk appetite statement.

Momura Group's Risk Appetite Statement is required to be reviewed at least annually by the EME but
it is reviewed on an ad-hoc basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following any

significant changes in Momura Group’s strategy. Risk appetite underpins all additional aspects of
Momura Group's risk management framewark,

44

118/204



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Global Risk Management Structure

Upon delegation from the EME, the Group Risk Management Committee ("GRMC™) deliberates on or
determines important matters conceming integrated risk management of Momura Group 1o assure the
sound and effective management of its businesses. The GRMC establishes a framework of integrated
risk management consisten! with Nomura Group's risk appetite. The GRMC supervises Nomura
Group's risk management by establishing and operating its risk management framework. The GRMC
reports the status of key risk management issues and any olher matlers deemed necessary by the
committee chairman ta the Board of Director of NHI and the EMB.

In additicn, the GRMC, upon delegation from the EMB, has established the Risk Management Palicy,
describing MNomura Group’s owerall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
management principles followed by Nomura Group.

Upon delegation from the GRMC, the Global Portfolio Committee ("GPC™) deliberates on or determines
matters in relation to the management of global portfolio concentration risk.

The CRO is responsible for setting the overall strategy and direction of the Risk Management Division,
The CRO is responsible for supervising the Risk Management Division and maintaining the
effectiveness of the risk management framework independently from the business unils within Nomura
Group. The CFO is responsible for overall financial strategy of Momura Group, and has operational
authority and respansibility over Nomura's iquidity management based on decisions made by the EMB,
The CCO is responsible for supenvising the Legal, Compliance and Controls Division ("LCC Division™)
and maintaining the effectiveness of the non-financial risk management framework (operational risk and
reputaticonal risk). The Risk Management Division, the Finance Division and the LCC Division comprise
vanous departments or units established independently from Nomura Group's business units. These
three divisions are responsible for establishing and cperating risk management processes, establishing
and enforcing risk management policies and regulations, verifying the effectiveness of risk management
methods, gathering repors from MNomura Group entilies, reporling to Executive Officers/Senior
Managing Directors and the GRMC and others, as well as reporting 1o regulatory bodies and handling
regulatory applications conceming risk management methods and other items as necessary. Important
risk management issues are closely communicated among these three divisions and the CRO, CFO
and CCO. The CRO, CFO and CCO regularly attend the EMB and GRMC meelings to repon specific
risk issues.

Policies and procedures are essential tools of governance and defing principles, rules and standards,
and the specific processes that must be adhered to in order to effectively manage risk al Nomura Group,
Risk management operations are designed to funclion in accordance with these policies and
procedures.

Development, consolidation, monitoring and reporting of risk management information  “risk MI™ ) are
fundamental to the appropriate management of risk. The aim of all risk Ml is to provide a basis for sound
decision making, aclion and escalation as required. The Risk Management Division, the Finance
Divigion and the LCC Division are responsible for producing regular risk MI, which reflects the position
of Momura Group relative to stated risk appetite. Risk Ml includes information from across the risk
classes defined in the risk management framewaork and reflect the use of the various risk tools used 1o
identify and assess those risks. These three divisions are responsible for implementing appropriate
contrals aver data integrity for risk M,

The Company’s qualitative and quantitative risk management

Market Risk

Market risk 5 the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in values of financial assels and liabilities
(including off balance sheet itemns) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of securities and others). Effective management of this risk requires the ability
o analyse a complex and evolving portfolio in a constantly changing global market environment, identify

problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner. The Company seeks
to minimise the market risks by entering into derivative agreements lo economically hedge the
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

exposures in its loans and medium term notes. The maturily structure of the derivatives corresponds
with the maturity of the medium term notes being hedged.

Interest Rate and Equity Price Risk
It is the policy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross curency derivatives or equity swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or long-term bomowings through the issuance of medium
term nodes. The Company funds the desired currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest and
then uses both interest rate and currency derivatives to generate the desired interest rate hedge profile.
This will involve matching the coupoen dates on both the assets and liabilities where relevant,

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

Currency Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Company that
are not denominated in the functicnal currency of the Company. All material net currency exposure
ansing from activities of the Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related denvatives
andfor currency derivatives.

It is the policy of the Company not to trade currency exposure; therefore, all currency derivative
transactions are entered into with the intention of hedging only.

Applying the above hedging policy on currency exposure, the Company does nol have a significant
currency exposure as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Credit Risk

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor's default, insolvency or administrative proceeding
which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms.
This includes both on and off-balance sheat exposures. it is also the risk of loss arising through a credit
valuation adjustment associated with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

The measurement, monitoring and management of credit risk at Nomura Group are govemned by a sel
of glabal policies and procedures. Credit Risk Management ("CRM"), a global function within the Risk
Management Division, is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of these policies and
procedures. Credit risk is managed by CRM together with various global and regional risk committees.
This ensures transparency of matenal credit risks and compliance with established credit limits, the
approval of material extensions of credit and the escalation of risk concentrations 1o appropriate senior
management. The Credit Risk Control Unit is a function within the Risk Mode! Validation Group which
is independent of CRM. It seeks to ensure that Momura Group's internal rating system is properly
reviewed and validated, and that breaks or issues are reponed to senior management for timely
resolution. The unit is responsible far ensuring that the system remains accurate and predictive of risk
and provides periodic reporting on the system lo senior management

Credit quality of financial assets

The Company is a fully owned subsidiary of NHI, who is the guarantor of the notes issued by the
Company, together with another related pary. Therefore the Company considered the credit rating of
Momura Group as the same credit rating received by NHI from S&P Glabal Ratings which is BEB+ as
of 31 March 2022.

The Company's loans and derivative financial instruments are traded exclusively with Nomura Group.
The external credit rating of NHI is considered o exhibit adequate protection parameters, as defined by
S&P Global Ratings. Consequently, the Company deems that credit risk is minimised.

Credif Risk Miigation Technigues

As mentioned previously, the Company enters into 1ISDA master agreements or equivalent agreements
{called "Master Netting Agreements™) to mitigate s exposure to credit loss. The impact of offsetting
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

financial assets and financial liabilities which are subject to these agreements is not reflacted in the
statement of financial position.

Impaired financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expecled credit losses associated with its
financial assets. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporing date as
described in Mote 2.3.e.

All loans are transacted with Momura Group, Please see Note 27 for the amount of impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 or prior period.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk Management

Momura Group defines liquidity risk as the risk of loss arising from difficulty in securing the necessary
funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deterioration of Momura
Group's creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions. This risk could arise from Momura-
specific or market-wide evenls such as inabilty to access the secured or unsecured debt markets, a
detenoration in Momura Group credit ratings, a faillure to manage unplanned changes in funding
requirements, a failure to liquidate assets guickly and with minimal loss in value, or changes in
regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different Momura group
entities. Liquidity risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite formulated by the EMB.
Momura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide stress and in addition, under Momura
Group specific stress, seeks 1o ensure encugh continuous liquidity to meet all funding requirements and
unsecured debt obligations across one year and 30-day periods respectively without raising funds
through unsecured funding or through the liquidation of assets.

Momura Group has in place a number of Liguidity Risk Management frameworks that enable Momura
Group to achieve s primary liquidity objective, These frameworks include (1) Centralized Control of
Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Ulilization of Unencumbered Assets as Par
of Liquidity Portfolio; (3) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturities
Commensurate with the Composition of Assels, (4) Management of Credit Lines to Momura Group
Entities; (%) Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests; and (8) Contingancy Funding Plan.

The EMB has the authorty to make decisions conceming Nomura Group liquidity management. The
CFO of NHI has the operational authority and responsibility over Nomura Group's liguidity management
based on decisions made by the EMB.

The Company is fully integrated into Momura Group’s Liquidity Risk Management frameworks given its
primary role as the funding vehicle of Nomura Group.

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by
Global Treasury of Nomura Group to avoid any concentration of funding by maturity and source. The

distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order 1o ensure
access to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one source.

47

121/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

By
“Groave - - FEE 95 L 589 295 1 SF OvL . #51 Aupanbil o) ansods [epl
ZV0YE - - PG 951 §89'795 1 [ - SISSE [E{IUBLY PRJUNOIS|DUN |ER]L
LZ10avE - . ¥EG OS5 SE9EO5 b Ber OrL - SARHE O} SAUBADE PUE SUES
I Adr I Al 1 Adr Iy Adr I pdr I pdr I jelr
eI siead § sIEad 1eak |- sfep 0B =fep PUBLRP UD
uEy) s =t shep 1g =iz 0E wey) S5 LZDZ YMEW LE Jo Y
SO0 FRT'Z - 65042 SE0'9FL 0E'sz0'L o¥E 296 - H5H RPNkl o aInsodxa (el
[T - 85052 SE0DYL DE'SZOL O¥EZ96 : SJISSE [FIUELY PANUNOISIBUN [EJOL
B0 FEE C - ZEEDR Sen'avt o0 OvE'295 : BARHE 08 SINIBAPE PUE LB
I Adr [LITIEY Ty 1 Adr Iy pdr I Adr I A I Aer
el siead § sIEah 1ead |- sfep 0 sfep PUBWRP UQ
uey) s =4 shep 1§ =iE 0 wey) 550 ZZOE yMEW 1S jo sy

S5lasse |Bloueuly
"uondwapal Jo uoleuILLS) AHES JaYYa JO UNEa) SY) SABY SSINIGE [BIDUBUY PAUCHUSW MOI3q BY) JO (3:80'F9 (LZ0Z) %ab 0L Alewxoiddy

"SUBWNISUL [BIDUBUY a4} jo Aunjew enpeiuce 2y Gujussasd jo esodind ay)
10y uswnsy) [epuely pugly ayp waoy paeiedas 100 SJE SSIITEY JEISUBLY SANBALISE DUE S]8SSE [B)AUBUY SAJBALIST J3pUNn DapISIa) SJE UDIUM SSABAUSD pappagqua ay)

‘pouad Buipodal ay) jo pus ay) e Bunses sUBHIPUGS Sy O} SouBlajal

A PEUILLIBIAD SI PASOISIP JUNOWE SU) 'Paxy 10U S PaAE32) ag 0) JUNOWE au) Jo pied aq o) Wnowe ay) sy, Auobajes puewsp uo Japun papoday ssof jo poud glnoy)
amEa gy e pejeubsep seqpgel erueusy ay) o) Jdasxe uoipsod [EIDJUELY JO JUSLWSE]S aUy) 0} 2)I2U023) J0U Op A31) SNy} SMO| YSED PRJUNOISIPUn U0 paseq alE pMojag sa|qe) ayL
safqel AER [BNORUCD

SINIWILVYLS TVIONYNI4 IHL OL S3LON

‘AN IONYNI4 340U N3 YHNNON

122/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

&Y
SELEFEZ [T IP0'EZS £20'MIE BLFELL ZL6'81E LIE'LEE ¥sp Aypinky) o aunsodxa e
SELEE'E [TTECT] Ip0'EZE £20'P0Z gLFELL 245845 LIE'LET S IHEY FHIUEUY PIJURCIE DU [EH0L
FLY IFE " - - VEF'F =TT 4 - FUBL LS FILRD
ST AGe - - - BEE'ERS IS0'vIE - sapeye woy Sumouog
EZPEISL Fa T LTEG5r 08 'L EFZOEL VEO'EZ LIE'LEZ S20] 50 [gond
yBnauy) anjes g e poeubsap sappge) Risuguly
EEVYLIT LISGL 0ZE'SS ESS'E Zi0'8 WOE'w BUismLIog S PUR PANSS| 180
IR Adr 1LY Adr I Adr 1Y Adr W Adr I AdP 0 Adr
[EROL siEak § aead ek | - <XEp 06 sfep PUBLLAP UQ
WYy e 8= sep 16 =t 0 wey) $507 LEOE YMep 1L 1o 5y
LELWEE [TFT LSEZIE 084’9 SES'EEP 026 459 052 'BFE w5 Aypinby) o aunsodxa |EK0L
12U LET SLZ'598 LSETLS 081°94E SEYEEF 026 {50 05LEVE SAIGEN [RBUEUY PAIUNGISIPUN (KDL
EWLLE - - GEF 01 B80'L SER'ERD - SUBL LS FILR0
e EEL - - - 8L I6E BEE'LBE - sapeye woy Sumousog
POESLY L L Z0F ZHOLEr SLE'8ZE JEE'ZE SEF'DE 08 6FE S50 50 |oud
yBricuy) anpes Jie) je paleubsop sHipRqe| RiSURUI4
SFE ST 2P THL BELDE SAE'LE 060'E LZET Buiwouog sILLD PUE PONSS| |00
IR Adr I Adi I AdiP LW Adr i Adir [ Adr U Adr
[IET EIE § CI e |- sAEp 06 wep pURWAP UD
WY e -l sEp 16 bl % 4 0 weiy) S5 LZ0T YNEW I o sy

sanIige) [elaueUlY
SLNIWILVYLS IVIONYNI4A IHL OL S3LON
‘AN JONYNIA 3d0HENI YHNIWON

123/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

LERLEL oL i unmﬁ 695 92 Z66'H ZEA'CL aLn'al AARRALDR [FIRIUEULY PRIUNOISPUN [ERL
[T Tetlzl ToaL vzl [ FITA 080z - SBALEALIDD
_ [EPuRUy poies ssoub pagunodsipun (oL
(EL950ET) BSEFEE (ShELERY [ B0ZLED BSFSEL 1) Bjgefed SJUNOWE [ENJIEIUDD
BCET T Z¥LLE GSET0L LER'EL EFE'VLE BIS kL BRYEAIGIES BIUTICULIE [EMJDRILOT
SIAIEALSP [ESUBLY PHHIL-250ID
ErETeL g0 THEEL 2558 [T7X] FE e SaaflEApap
[EjaURUY P2 [HES-13U PAJURGISIPUN (kL
ZrgrelL rEE0s ZEE'EE BL5'5C orl'o 9t a10'aL BINGILE S2MIEAIBR PRjEEE-1RN
STAJEAUEP [E[DUEU|) PRHES1AN
IR Adr U Adr N X i I Adr [T 1N T Al Jar A dr

0L SIEM § ETL JE |- SAEP 06 shep PURLEP U0
WE) e 5=l sfep 1g = Il L | LEDE YMEW LT o 5y
[T FLL'RZ GA0°52 5519 PE0'EL [ L5E'LEL BAREAUDP [EFIUBUY PRIUROIS|PUN |ER0L
lesz"iz) rs0'gl) rzz's) rag'zL) B59LL iPrL'el . SBAJIEAPAP [EfURUY
paies ssoull pajunoos|pun (e
@0a'seL'L) [T reS'ILL) {zga'Le) ozL'wse) [ELrecal sigeded spnouws [BRRRIUOD
SFEROLL £29'5L QZETHL 85581 BLL 9T BO9'EED SRASIN SRINOURE [BIIRICT
SAAPEANIP [EITUBUY PRNRS-550UD
ETLSPT gL'y £is'os 608l 9cv's 0082 Lse'Lrl SIfEANAR
[BIPUTUY B IS0 PRIUNDISIPUN [RI0L
EZLCHE BEL S EEDE B¥0EL SRS DoE'E LGE'LFL SUNDALE SOAEALISE PajRsE-Jap
SIANTALIP [FIDURUY PR IIE-1N

IR Adr 1Y Adr 1 Adr 1L Adr 1 Adr I Adr s Adr

Rl IR § G 1 |- AP 06 e PURLSP UQ

ULy e g=1 shep 16 =it 0F ey 5507 TZ0Z yMey 1L o 5

SBRLEALIED [BIDUEBULY

124/204

ajep AumyeL
|[EnfEnquos ay) o) pouad Guiuiewsas ay) uo paseq s studnoul Aunew o sisfjeue ay] saAeauap |BRUely sAuedwod ay) jo ayoid AJUNJEW SU) SMOYS MO|aq 2|gE) a1

SLNIWILVYLE TVIONYNI4 SHL OL S3LON
‘AN 3ONVYNIA 3408 N3 YHNINON



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operational Risk

Momura Group defines operational risk (Ihe “Operational Risk™) as the risk of l0ss or non-financial impact
arising from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Operational risk includes in its definition compliance, legal, IT and cyber security, fraud, third party and
ather non-financial risks. Operational risk does not include strategic risk and reputational risk, howewver,
some operational risks can lead to reputational issues and as such operational and reputational risks
may be closely linked.

The Three Lines of Defense
Momura Group adopts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising the following elements:

First Line of Defense: All executives and employees of the front office for Financial Risk and all
execulives and employees for Non-Financial Risk are primarily responsible for risk management and
assume the consequences associated with business execution and to provide evidence and justify that
the risk arising from their business activities is in line with risk appetite.

Second Ling of Defense: The department responsible for risk management supports and monitors
management activities on the First Line of Defense and reports to boards and the senior management.
In addition, the Second Line independently evaluales risk management governance established by the
First Line.

Third Line of Defense: The Internal Audit function examines and evaluates the risk management from
an independent standpoint, provides advice for improvement, and reports the examination and
evaluation are reported to the Audit Committes.

Operational Risk Management Framework

An Operational Risk Management ("ORM") Framework has been established in order to allow Momura
Group to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report on operational risk. The GRMGC, with delegated
authorily from the EMB has formal oversight over the management of operational risk,

The ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2) Products and Services and 3)
Cutputs. The Company is fully integrated into Momura Group's ORM framework.

Below are the measures taken to control the main operational risks which form Products and Services
in the ORM framework:

« Risk and Control Self-Assessment; This process is used to identify the inherent risks the business
faces, the key controls associated with those risks and relevant actions to mitigate the residual risks.

+ Scenano Analysis: This process is used to assess potentially high impact, low likelinood operational
risk events.

« Event Reporling: This process is used 1o identify and report any event which resulted in or had the

potential to result in a loss or gain or other impact associated with inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events.

» Key Risk Indicators: These are the metrics used to monitor the business' exposure to operational risks
and trigger appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

Applying the above measurements, the Company does not have a significant operational risk exposure
as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, Fair value

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparizon of the carmying amounts and fair values of financial Mstruments

The carrying amounts of current financial assels and current financial liabilties measured at amortised
cost including Bormawing fraim affiliates fairly approximate their fair values, since they are short-term in

nature. Below tables include comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of non-current loans
and advances to affiliates and non-current debt issued and other bormmowing.

As of March 2022

Carrying
amaount Fair value
_Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Loans and advances to affiliates 247 880 247 957 -
Dbt issued and other borrowing 161,606 156,879 -

As of March 2021

Carrying
amaount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Loans and advances to affiliates - - -
Debt issued and other borrowing 242,203 237,207 -

For financial assels carmied at amortised cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the
reporting date, fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing rates from
the active markets. Credit risk and seniorty of the relevant loans are taken into consideration in
determining the fair value of the loan.

For financial iabilities carried at amortised cost having a maturity of more than one year from the
reporting dale, fair value is delermined based on price quotations at the reporting date. These
guatations are based an technigues for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the fair value
are observable either directly or indirectly, as well as techniques which use inputs not based on
abservable market data.

Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments measured at fair value, including those measured at fair value using the fair
value option, have been categorized into a three-level hierarchy (“fair value hierarchy™) based on the
transparency of wvaluation inputs used by Momura to estimate fair value. A financial instrument is
classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the financial instrument, The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as
follows, with: Lewel 1 representing the most transparent inputs and Level 3 representing the least
transparent inputs;

Level 1: Cbhservable valuation inputs that reflect quoled prices (unadjusted) for identical financial
instruments traded in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or
indirecily obsenvable for the financial instrument.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 3: Unobservable valuation inputs which reflect Nomura Group's assumptions and specific data,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nalure, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation at the beginning of each reporting period.

The availability of valuation inputs observable in the market varies by product and can be affected by a
variety of factors. Significant factors include, but are not restricted to the prevalence of similar products
in the market, especially for customized products, how established the product is in the market, for
example, whether it is a new product or is relatively mature, and the reliability of information provided
in the market which would depend, for example, on the frequency and volume of current data. & period
af significant change in the market may reduce the availabilty of observable data. Under such
circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower level in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instruments include the nature
of the market in which the product would be traded, the underying risks, the type and liquidity of market
data inputs and the nature of observed transactions for similar instruments,

Where valuation models include the use of valuation inputs which are less observable or unobservable
in the market, significant management judgment is used in establishing fair value. The valuations for
Level 3 financial instruments, therefore, involve a greater degree of judgment than those waluations for
Level 1 or Level 2 financial instruments and has become more prevalent during the COVID-19
pandemic,

The following tables presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transparency of
inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Company to determine such fair values,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The following tables show a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments
categorised within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

period.

March 2022
Financial kabilities
designated at fair
Derivative Derivative value thraugh
financial assets  financial liabilbes profit or lass
Millions of JPY Milions of JPY Milliens of JPY
Beginning balance 39,121 41,051 403,732
Total gainsfilosses) in the income
statement and staterment of
comprehensive income 11,406 {12,402) 15,473
Mew Issues - - 420,014
Sattlements (17,294) 16,647 [325,348)
Transfers in 230 4,030 34,780
Transfers out (1.812) (11.699) (267 475)
Ending balance 30,851 a7 827 286,185
Total unrealised gains/losses)
for the period incleded in the
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income for
imstruments held at the end of the
reporting period 3,135 {7,323) B3
March 2021
Financial kabilities
designated at fair
Derivative Derivative walue through
financial assets __financial liabilities profit or loss
Millions of JPY Millions of JEY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 49,423 54,355 186,485
Total gains/(losses) in the income
statement and statement of
comprehensive incoms © (30,249) (16,2089) 34,340
MNew Issues - - 433 378
Settlements 21,087 (8,088) (257,733)
Transfers in 407 12,259 92,108
Transfers out {1,547) {1,268) {84 B44)
Ending balance 39,121 41,051 403,732
Total unrealised gains/(losses)
for the pericd incleded in the
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income for
imstruments heald at the end of the
reporting period 7608 {4,016) (9,452

*For assets, positive balances represent gains, negative balances represent losses, For liabilfies, positve balances represent
losses, negative balances represent gains.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total gains and losses on financial derivatives included inthe above table are included under Nef frading
incomedioss) in the income statement, Total gains and losses on financial liabilties designated at fair
value through profit or loss included in the above table are incleded under Nef gaindiloss) on fnancial
liabilities designaled af fair value through proft ar loss in the income statement.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, there were no financial assets and financial
liabiliies recognised at fair value under Level 1. Thus, no transfers occurmed between Level 1 and Lewvel 2.

The Company assumes that all transfers of financial instruments from one level to another level within
the fair value hierarchy accur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period in which the
transfer takes place. Amounts reponed abowve therefore represent the fair value of the financial
instruments at the beginning of each quarer within the relevant period when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques by major class of financial instrument
Derivatives:

The Company has only ©QTC denvatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, which are valued
using internal models using markel transactions and olher markel evidence whenever possible,
including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market clearing transactions, broker or
dealer quolations, ar alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Valuation
techniques include simple discounted expected cash flow techniques, Black-Scholes and Monte Caro
simulations, OTC denvatives, including bifurcated embedded demvatives, are classified within Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can be corroborated to markel evidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such as correlation, long-
dated volalility, or other unobservable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of dervatives
classified as Level 3 by the Company include exctic interest rate derivatives, exofic foreign exchange
derivatives, exotic equity derivatives, exolic derivatives including a combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange and equity risks and cerain other transactions including long-dated or exolic credit
derivatives,

Valuation techniques may rely on parameters which are not observable in the market due to an absence
of equivalent, current, market transactions or observable market data. These valuation techniques are
based on assumptions. As a resull, the fair value calculated using these valuation techniques will
change if the underlying assumptions change.

Forthe year ended 31 March 2022, a total of JPY 230 million of financial assets (2021: JPY 407 million)
and a total of JPY 4,030 million of financial liabilities (2021: JPY 12,259 million) were transferred into
Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JPY 183 million of
equity dervatives (2021. comprised primarly JPY 448 milion of equity dervatives) which were
transferred into Level 3 because cerain volatilties and correlations became unobservable or the
significance of unobservable parameters increased. On the financial liabilities side the transferred
amounts comprised primarily JPY 3,727 million of equity dervatives (2021: comprised primarly JPY
11,683 million of equity derivatives) which were transferred into Level 3 because certain volatilities and
correlations became unobservable or the significance of unobservable parameters increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, a total of JPY 1,812 million of financial assets (2021: JPY 1,547
million) and a total of JBY 11,699 million of financial kabilities (2021: JPY 1,269 millicn) were transferred
out of Level 3, On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JPY 1,274 million
of equity derivatives (2021: comprised primarily JPY 1,220 million of equity derivatives) which were
transferred oul of Level 3 because cerain volatilities and corelations became observable or the
significance of unobservable parameters decreased. On the financial liabilities side the transferred
amounts comprised primarily JFY 11,654 million of equity derivatives (2021: comprised primarily of JPY
532 million of equity derivatives) which were transferred out of Level 3 because certain volatilities and
correlations became obsenable or the significance of unobservable parameters decreased,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Medium-term noles:

The Company issues medium-lermm notes which contains embedded features that atter the return to the
investor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest (o a return that depends upon some other
variables, such as an equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third
party or a more complex interest rate (i.e., an embedded denvative).

The fair value of such medium term notes is determined wsing a quoted market price in an active market
for the identical lability if available, and where not available, using a mixure of valuation techniques that
use the quoted price of the identical liabilty when traded as an assef, quated prices for similar liabilities,
similar Eabilties when traded as an assel, or an internal model which combines discounted cash flow
("DCF) valuation techniques and oplion pricing models, depending on the nature of the embedded fealures
within the medium term note, The significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the debt
instrument component include yield curves, prepayment rates, default of probabilities and loss severities.

Valuation processes

The Company is fully integrated into Nomura Group's governance framework which mandates
determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropnateness
of any fair value measurement of a financial instrument used within these financial statements including
those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

The functions within NMomura Grouwp for either defining, implementing or maintaining valuation policies
and procedures are as follows:

«  The Valuation Model Validation Group within Momura's Risk Management Department reviews
pricing models and assesses model appropriateness and consistency independently of the front
office, The model reviews consider a number of factors about a model’s suitability for valuation and
sensitivity of a particular product. Valuation models are calibrated to the market on a periodic basis
by comparison 1o observable marked pricing, comparison with alternative models and analysis of
risk profiles.

«  The Accounting Policy Group within Nomura's Finance Department defines the Group's accounting
policies and procedures, including those associaled with determination of fair value. This group
repors to the Global Head of Accounting Policy and ultimately to the CFO of Nomura Group,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Quantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant snobsenvable inputs and assumplions
used for financial instruments classified as Lewvel 3. These financial instruments also typically include

observable valuation inpuls (i.e. Level 2 valuation inpuis) which are not included in the table,

The following table shows valuation techniques and inputs wsed in the fair value measurements of Level 3
financial assets and financial iabilities:

Fair value as of

March 2022
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
hAssets Liabilities technigue(s) inputs inputs’
Forewgn exchange 9,582 8,961 DCFOptien FX Volatilities(%) 13.22-13.93%
related derrvatives Model
Interest rate dervatives 19,027 20,885 DCFOption Interast rates 0.31-2. 85%
Model FX Volatilities{%) 9.20-13.93%
IR Volatiltes(bp) 4117 -75.72
Corralatons -0.25-0.98
{-1.0to 1.0
Equity derivatives 2,059 7,845 DCFIOption Dividend yield 0.00-6 53%
Model EQ Volatilities(%) 537 -07.04%
Caorralatons 40.71-0.93
{-1.0 to 1.0}
Cradit darivatives 303 126 DCF Credit Spreads{%) 0.24 -1.35%
Recovery Rate(%) 35-35%
Financial liabilities DCFiOption Interest Rate Der.
designated at fair value - 288,185 Model Interest rates 0.31-2.89%
throwgh profit or loss FX Volatilities{%) 9.20-13,93%
IR Volatilities(bp) 41,17 -T5.72
Correlations -0.25-0.98
{-1.0to 1.0)
Equity Derivatives
Dividend yiekd(%) 0.00-5.63%
EQ Volatilities{ %) 537 -97.04%
Caorrelations -0.71-0.93
(-1.01ta 1.0)
Credit Dernvatives
Credit Spreads (%) 0,24 -1,359%
Recovery Rates(%) 35-35%
Taotal 30,951 323,812
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value as of

March 2021
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
WValuation uncbservable wvaluation
Agsets Liabilities technique(s) inputs inputs”
Forewgn exchange 8,758 9,00a DCFOptan FX Vaolatilities[%) 12.00-13.03%
related derivatives Modal .
Interrest rate denvatives 24,659 25,362 CCFROpton Interast rates 0.12-2.23%
Modal FX Volatilities[%) 9.57-1312%
IR Volatilities[bp] 20.60-77.04
Caomelations =0.25-0.98
{-1.0ta1.0)
Equity derivatives 4,716 6,253 DCFiOption Dividend yield 0.00-6.77%
Model  EQ Vaolatilities[%] 13.83-82.31%
Corralations -0.68-0.96
_— A0tedtloy
Credit derivatives 580 340 OCF Credit Spreads 0.24-1.38%
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Fmancial liabilities DCFiOption  Interest Rate Der.
designated at fair value - 403,732 Model Interest rates 0,12-2 . 068%
throwgh profit or loss FX Volatilities[%)] 89.57-13.12%
IR Volatilties[bp] Z20.60-77.01
Comelations -0.25-0.88
(-1.0to 1.0}
Equity Dervatives
Dividend yiald 0.00-8.77%
EQ Volatilities[%] 13.83-82 31%
Caorrelations -0.69-0.96
{-1.0%0 1.0}
Credit Denivatives
Credit Spreads 0.24-1.39%
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Total 39121 444,783

* Range information is provided in percentages, coaficients and represents the highest and lowest level significant uncbserabile
valuation input used to value that type of financial instrument. A vade dispersion in the range does nol necessanly reflect increased
uncertainty or subjectivity in the valuation input and is typically just a consequence of the different characteristics of the financial
instrumerts themselves.

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Lewvel 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response 10 a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation risk, current values may continue 1o decrease if conditions deteriorate further, Conversely,
should conditions improve; an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected. However,
management does not anticipate a significant impact in the net position of Level 3 financial instruments.

As the Company enters into derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in medium term notes, the
increase or decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact its profits and
losses. Hedging derivative instruments offset the posilions arising from the derivalives which are
embedded in the debi instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in uncbservable
inputs related 1o these financial instruments,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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For each class of financial instrument described in the abowe tables, changes in each of the significant
unabservablke inputs and assumptions used by the Company will impact the fair value measurement of
the financial instrument. The sensilivily of these Level 3 fair value measurements to changes in
unabservable inputs and interrelationships between those inputs are described below:

Derivatives - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a denvalive, significant increases
(decreases) in the underying of the derivative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in isolation or
significant decreases (increasas) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher {lower) fair
value measurement. Where the Company is shor the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of these
changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurements reported by the Company.

Where the Company is long oplionality, recovery rates or comrelation, significant increases (decreases)
in volatilities, recovery rates or correlation will generally result in a significantly higher {lower) fair value
measurement. Where the Company is short oplionality, recovery rales or correlation, the impact of
these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurements,

Financial fabilities designated at fair value through profif or foss — When financial liabilties designated
at fair value through profit or loss contain embedded features, embedded features alter the return to the
investor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a return that depends upon some
other variables, such as an equity or equity index, commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating
of a third party or a more complex interest rate,

Given that the financial dervatives are held for rsk management purposes 1o offset movernent from such
financial kabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss, sensitivity of the fair value of the financial
liabilies designated at fair value through profit or l0ss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected
be in the opposite direction of those of the derivatives.

There is no predictable interrelationship between significant unobservable inpuls for Level 3 financial
instruments.

Given the Company is exposed o limited market risk, the sensifivity of the profit or loss and equily to
unobservable inputs is negligible. Regarding the statement of financial position, when reasonably
passible allemative unobservable inpuls are wsed, the impact on fair value of Level 2 instruments is not
significant compared to the total assets of the entity.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of valuation techniques with significant unobservable parameters
are deferred over the life of the contract until parameters become observable or when the instrument is
derecognised. Changes in fair value after inceplion are recognised in the income statement. The total fair
value attributable to these financial instruments that is yet to be recognised in the income statement as of
the reporting date is JPY 193 millicn gain (2021: JPY 347 milicn gain). The following table shows a
reconciliation of movements in the day 1 gains and losses between the beginning balances and the ending
balances,

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Milions of JPY Milkans of JPY
Beginning balance gain 347 512
Mew transactions . -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the year {154) (165)
Ending balance gain REE] 347
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
25, Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject 1o the Master
Metting Agreements and similar agreements.

As of March 2022
Millions af JPY

Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financial

position
Gross
amounts  Amounts

Gross amounts of D"ﬁf’: n pr?::'::_ﬂd

;:a?n'i':l"“d balance  balance Financial Cash Met

assets/liabilities!) sheet sheet instruments'™  collateral® Amount
Derivative
financial assels 202 656 = 202,666 (121,363) (B0.610) 20,683
Loans and
advances to
affiliates 86,636 - BE 635 - - 86,636
Cither assets - - - - - -
Total financial
assels 289,302 - 289,302 {121,363) {&0,610) 107,329
Drerivative
financial 237,496 . 237 4595 (121,363) {115,656) 4G7
habalities
Cither liabilities - - - - - -
Tatal financial
liabilities 237 496 - 237,496 (121,363) (115,666) 467

&1
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of March 2021

Millions of JFY
Related amounts not set offin
the statement of fimancial
position
Gross
amounts  Amounts

Gross amounts of q";f: in pl‘f:::::td

:]:Gamg“ balance balance Financial Cash Net

as Niabilitias!" sheet sheet instruments’®  collateral™  Amount
Drerivative
financial assets 157,328 - 157,326 (64,935) - 87,301
Loans and
advances to
affiliates 265,825 - 265,825 - - 265,825
Cither assets 1.840 - 1.840 . - 1.840
Tatal financial
assets 424,981 - 424,991 [69,935) - 355,056
Deerivative
financial 176,919 - 176,918 (69,248) {107 .673) -
lakilities
Cither liakilities g0 - B90 (B30} - -
Taotal financial
liabilities 177,609 - 177,609 [69,9.36) {107 ,673) -

1) The bifrcated embedded derivalives are excluded as they are not in scope of master nelting and similar agreements

2 Those represent amounts which are nol permitied to be offsel on the face of the balance sheet but which provide the
Company with the right of offsel in the event of courterparty default, insobvency or banknuptey.

3)  The cash collateral received against the positne mark 1o marke! values of dervatves and the cash collmeral pledged
towards the negative mark bo market values of derhvatives are reponied under Other kabiliies and Other assels respectively

The Company entered into [SDA Master Agreements wilh all derivalive counterparties which grant the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insclvency or bankrupicy. The
Company also entered into On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Metting Agreaments with
one of the counterparties which grant the Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty
default, insolvency or bankruptcy, These arrangements reduce credit risk exposure relative to what the
credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the same
underlying contracts,

Usually, netting arrangements are constituted by a master nefling agreement which specifies the
general terms of the agreement between the counterparties, including information on the basis of the
netting caleulation, types of collateral, the definition of default and ofher termination events, the
calculation of damages {on default) and documentation required. The Master Metling Agreement
contains the terms and condiions by which all (or as many as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are governed. Multiple individual transactions are subsumed under this general
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparies canduct their
relevant mutual business. Inaddition to the mitigation of credit risk, placing individual transactions under
a single master netting agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope also helps to
mitigate settlement risks associated with transacting in multiple jursdictions or across multiple
contracts.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
26. Capital management policy

The objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company has an
appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and issued medium term notes and bormowing from
affiliates,

The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into consideration the financing needs and liquidity position of Namura Group,

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year,

As of
March 2022 March 2021
Millions of JPY Millions of JBY
Issued and paid-up capital 5,991 6,658
Share premium 1,321 1,321
Currency translation reserve 1,411 1,744
Total issued capital 9723 9,723
Debt issued and other borrowing 202 573 254 TAT
- Mon-current 161,606 242,203
= Current 40,967 12,534
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,162 533 1,334,609
= Mon-current 721,494 787,915
- Current 441 039 836,694
Borrowing from affiliates TET 126 896,182
- Mon-current - -
- Current 787126 895,182
Total issued capital, medium term notes and
borrowing from affiliates 2,161,955 2,495 251

27. Related parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhere of these financial statements, the Company had the following material
fransactions with related parties during the period.

a. Transactions with the parent

i. The Company entered into lban agreements with NHI and earned interast income of JPY
10,491 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 12,532 million) (Refer to Mote 3).
As of 31 March 2022, 1otal outstanding loan 1o NHI amounted to JPY 1,613,500 million (2021:
JPY 1,862 651 million). The outstanding balance is unsecured. The Company has JPY 209,700
million unsetiled loan commitments to NHI as of 31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 223,300 million).
JPY 12 million impaiment gain has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 on the
loans and unsettied loan commitments (o NHI (2021: JPY 52 million gain).

ii. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with MHI, as one of the guarantors of the
Company notes, whereby the Company has agreed 1o pay a fee (Refer 1o Mole 4) based on
the average outstanding amount of the notes during the relevant calculation pericd. JPY 715
million guarantes fees were reported under Fee and commission expense for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 862 million). As of 31 March 2022, the guarantee fee payable to
MHI is JPY 715 million (2021 JPY 862 million).

63
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i, In accordance with the Unilateral APA in the Metherlands (Refer 1o Mote 8), neither the
Company nor MHI is obligated to make a payment as of 31 March 2022. JPY 1,053 million
gain was reported under Other operating gains{losses) andJPY 1,053 million accrued under
Other assets in relation 1o the Unilateral APA as of 21 March 2021

iv. The Company incurred service fee of JPY 401 million for NHI information technology
infrastructure support and other services for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 406
million}. This expense is reported under General and adminisirative expenses in the income
statement. As of 31 March 2022, the service fee payable to NHI is JPY 201 million (2021:
JPY 203 million).

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2022, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from Momura
Group, Mo remuneration to the managing directors was chargeable to the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

c. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company entered inlo loan agreements with other related parties and eamed interest
income of JPY 6,165 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: JPY 5,867
million) (Refer to Note 3), As of 31 March 2022, tolal outstanding boan 10 other related paries
amounted to JPY 548 187 million {2021: JPY 594 659 million). All cutstanding balances are
unsecured, The Company has JPY 161,713 million unsetiled loan commitments 1o other related
parties as of 31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 8313 million). JPY 157 million impairment loss has
been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 on the loans and unsettied commitments
to other related parties (2021: JPY 26 millicn gain)

ii. The Company entered into bormowing agreements with other related paries and incurred
imerest expense (Refer 1o Mote 3), All borrowings from affiliates are from other related parties.

iii. The Company entered into derivative transactions with other related padies under I1SDA Master
Agreements, As of 31 March 2022, derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities
with other related paries amounted to JPY 202688 milion and JPY 237496 million,
respectively (31 March 2021: derivative financial assets - JPY 157,326 million and derivative
financial labilities - JPY 178,919 million). Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts and receives cash collateral related 1o dervativie transactions
(Refer to nate 16 and 21).

iv. As of 31 March 2022, total cutstanding balance of debt issued by the Company held within
Momura Group for liquidity or market making purposes amaounted to JPY 16,038 million (2021:
JPY 14,698 milkon) of which JPY 1,647 million classified under Debt issved and ofher borrowing
(2021: JPY 2 712 milliony and JPY 14,389 milkon under Financial labilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss (2021: JPY 11,988 million).

v. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in Nomura Group,
as guarantors of the Company notes, whereby it has agreed to pay a fee (Refer o Note 4)
based on the average culstanding amount of the notes during the relevant calculation period.
JPY 2 million guarantee fees were charged to Fee and commission expense for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: JPY 4 million). As of 31 March 2022, the guarantee fee payable to the
other related party is JPY 2 million (2021: JPY 4 million),

vi. Forthe year ended 31 March 2022, the Company incurred service fees amounting to JPY 191
million to cenain related parties for provision of operational support which are reporied under
Geneval and administrafive expenses in the income staterment (2021: JPY 182 milllion). As of
31 March 2022, the service fee payable to cerain related paries is JPY 115 million (31
March 2021: JPY 118 million).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
vil, For the year penod ended 31 March 2022, the Company incumed Senice revenue amounting
to JPY 91 milkon from certain related party for operational support which are repored under
Other operating gains/Alosses) in the income statement (2021: JPY 92 million). As of 31 March
2022, the senvice revenue receivable from certain related party is JPY 23 million (31 March
2021: JPY 23 million).

vill. The Company placesireceives Cash collateral tofirom derivative counterpariies relaled to
derivative transactions and incurred interest (Refer to Mote 16 and Note 21).

28. Events after the reporting period

As of the date of this report, there have been no events subsequent 1o the year ended 31 March 2022
which requires adjustments of, or disclosures in, these financial statements or notes thereto.

29, Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes to add the total gain for the year ended 31 March 2022 of JPY 1,313 million to
the refained eamings. This proposal has been reflected in the financial statements

3 July 2022

Managing Direclors

Kentaro Kubota Kenichiro Asano

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent auditor's report

The report of the independent auditors, Emst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6.
Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company's articles of association

In accordance with Article 20 of the Company's articles of association, the net result shall be free at the
disposal of the General Meeting.

65
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x (HSI
(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): ©)
HSILI(T-1): m
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1) x
(TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): m
K:1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

200
L(T) = L(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (S(T)/S(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

L(T): m 200

L(T-1) : m 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

S(M): 200

S(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (F()/F(T-1) - 1) + (1 - K x M) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: -1

M:

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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SPI_En=m S&P

SPI__En1 = (m-1) S&P
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HRn = m
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Fn=m FC/LC

m=1

SPI_EHi = SPI_EHo x SPI_FE1 /SPI_Eo  HRu

SPI_EHn = SPI_EHn1 x SPI_En /SPI_Eni  HRn

HRn = (Sm—l/ Fm—l)—(Sm—l/ Sm)

m d=1,2,3, D
md m d m0 m-1
F_lmd d

1
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
25,374.67 30,841.69 24,080.11 21,620.88 23,103.58
14,011.07 16,327.56 16,665.33 11,776.79 11,890.75
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
15,792.00 15,264.39 13,537.18 14,274.76 14,184.74 11,791.45
13,311.20 12,698.93 11,890.75 12,050.56 11,741.22 7,637.70
)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
7,015.23 5,670.84 5,524.01 6,056.80 5,047.12
4,929.88 4,447.28 4,563.88 4,518.82 3,935.67
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
4,833.32 4,903.08 5,047.12 5,007.30 5,006.36 6,096.37
4,420.87 4,485.90 4,738.29 4,581.69 4,575.96 4,966.76
)
200
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
376.03 371.77 264.33 418.96 525.15
226.50 213.03 194.78 116.78 371.85
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
426.74 425.66 428.86 416.18 365.10 355.22
388.73 371.85 391.54 321.91 332.59 321.46
)
200
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
887.36 890.83 911.02 1,121.14 531.65
689.12 686.00 765.93 523.75 454.61
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
523.25 531.65 517.92 564.24 552.03 562.71
498.09 496.65 493.58 497.39 526.88 533.69
)
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JPX
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
16,844.20 17,349.46 21,413.13 36,165.67 33,693.02
14,437.73 13,224.51 15,228.30 19,075.25 25,256.59
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
31,393.68 33,693.02 32,049.25 32,815.15 36,331.46 41,775.57
28,238.71 30,380.31 29,888.70 31,596.26 31,509.46 35,426.76
()
JPX
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
6,114.68 6,317.04 5,865.28 5,112.78 4,247.21
5,639.84 5,546.42 4,888.43 3,628.89 3,626.40
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
3,972.46 3,824.58 3,845.14 3,731.05 3,735.99 3,518.72
3,763.13 3,626.40 3,709.88 3,664.39 3,474.95 3,222.45
)
JPX
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2,062.91 3,834.26 2,708.95 2,336.99 1,307.79
1,031.06 1,208.97 1,432.64 149.37 395.31
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
1,307.79 1,237.94 1,156.56 1,432.93 1,685.16 2,533.08
1,022.63 902.20 880.25 1,168.96 1,397.08 1,639.37
()
JPX
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
8,021.12 6,315.45 5,578.41 7,784.36 3,360.20
5,450.03 3,763.64 4,009.02 3,287.23 1,643.32
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
1,869.93 1,913.90 1,933.76 1,648.11 1,495.06 1,365.65
1,643.32 1,661.28 1,656.99 1,476.37 1,348.85 1,021.91
)

187/204



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2,209.55 2,516.59 2,557.92 2,704.76 3,473.29
1,442.29 1,587.43 1,707.93 967.14 2,380.04
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
3,358.88 3,473.29 3,471.52 3,530.90 3,327.62 3,234.25
3,024.86 3,108.67 3,026.03 3,037.32 2,850.67 2,757.58
()
10
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
411.02 355.69 341.05 386.32 218.66
322.40 293.31 265.96 214.63 173.99
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
188.45 184.70 187.03 185.62 190.62 193.06
178.47 175.46 173.99 172.49 177.09 177.56
()
11
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1,234.02 1,355.55 967.92 1,365.49 1,320.73
955.09 757.02 824.20 557.86 948.28
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
1,141.40 1,175.73 1,062.58 976.74 808.64 790.30
1,064.11 1,070.99 948.28 728.25 652.45 667.47
)
12 STOXX 50
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
5,842.81 6,192.48 5,876.87 5,749.65 6,189.78
4,558.10 5,254.96 5,080.21 3,517.58 5,168.56
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
6,189.78 6,169.28 6,128.17 6,305.55 6,695.57 7,014.88
5,675.83 5,750.14 5,789.63 6,118.92 6,259.25 6,158.37
()
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13 S&P500 ( )
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
487.99 524.51 597.95 645.54 804.44
403.93 443.47 458.25 388.46 630.89
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
764.21 786.80 804.44 808.33 781.50 790.11
723.92 749.91 745.22 754.88 734.43 736.58
)
14 Sep REIT  (
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
593.80 604.85 721.44 762.78 741.64
465.01 553.28 573.28 476.26 668.09
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
730.92 741.64 722.47 723.13 711.85 743.46
701.31 711.38 703.96 676.98 676.94 698.91
)
15 Nifty50 Q@ ( )
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
4,617.15 5,467.50 5,440.90 6,069.20 10,131.75
2,977.00 3,930.25 4,172.95 1,933.80 5,744.50
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
10,131.75 9,694.75 9,024.55 9,802.55 9,213.05 8,795.00
9,140.85 8,500.60 8,102.95 8,531.90 7,636.40 7,259.35
)
16 Nifty50 )
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
456.05 396.10 381.20 519.00 279.90
367.90 337.25 334.05 272.85 205.95
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
216.90 224.05 228.95 22260 233.25 238.70
205.95 210.15 217.10 208.00 214.10 216.40
)
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17 70
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
45,782.80 47,746.38 44,874.06 44,346.51 49,647.93
36,706.29 37,031.05 36,732.76 30,206.25 38,674.20
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
48,795.15 48,332.26 46,994 .88 49,782.72 49,991.35 50,999.81
47,339.23 44,504 .64 44,718.57 47,517.52 47,672.55 45,283.17
()
18 S&P/JIPX
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
278.681 288.258 281.344 278.637 322.778
219.578 225.787 225.218 194.636 261.267
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
308.456 307.635 298.565 313.605 322.323 322.083
299.927 283.490 284.103 300.450 305.854 292.716
)
19 REIT
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
3,847.177 4,172.403 5,471.260 5,536.668 5,700.644
3,423.293 3,591.120 4,033.305 2,884.009 4,482.509
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
5,535.792 5,512.454 5,469.385 5,497.937 5,148.087 5,370.221
5,295.174 5,276.389 5,278.477 4,853.520 4,946.565 4,915.442
)
20 Al 70
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
36,675.01 38,373.24 34,441.74 34,553.13 41,869.65
28,581.10 28,161.23 29,208.32 23,397.85 33,320.78
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
41,686.33 41,637.09 40,076.24 40,936.14 40,073.39 40,899.84
39,526.27 38,468.80 38,410.62 37,876.66 37,792.14 35,806.38
)
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21 30
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
24,082.17 25,957.90 19,494.79 23,226.87 29,726.88
17,666.71 16,457.87 15,835.26 12,760.43 23,236.82
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
27,568.35 28,274.53 27,889.67 29,510.44 28,009.21 29,441.81
26,024.12 26,337.42 26,461.70 25,405.42 26,169.21 25,384.19
()
22 50
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
26,078.87 27,725.06 27,826.69 27,823.84 31,977.30
21,746.35 22,879.73 23,361.87 20,871.32 26,253.31
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
31,165.26 31,448.14 31,137.75 31,188.93 30,540.27 31,548.71
30,160.04 29,869.99 29,765.72 28,936.73 29,398.74 28,798.51
)
23
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1,748.22 1,820.28 1,684.41 1,670.68 2,065.67
1,295.05 1,279.74 1,345.49 1,083.17 1,611.98
2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022
10 11 12
1,962.33 1,967.08 1,903.70 1,925.61 1,892.32 1,877.98
1,887.72 1,781.61 1,791.50 1,753.00 1,806.61 1,690.43
()
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| ndependent auditor’s report

To: the shareholder and managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statementsfor the year
ended 31 March 2022 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 of Nomura Europe Finance NV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Nomura Europe Finance
NYV. asat 31 March 2022, and of itsresult and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022

The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2022: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows

The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance NV. (the company) in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties
(Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code
of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants, aregulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulationsin the
Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregel s accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of
Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Materiality
Materiality JPY 6,825 million (31 March 2021: JPY 7,947 million)

0.5% (31 March 2021: 0.5%) of ‘ debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial

Benchmark applied
P liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

We have chosen ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of these
accounts is the most important metric for the users of the financial statements. We
determined materiality consistently with the previous financial year.

Explanation

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the
financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 341 million, which are identified during the audit, would
be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Scope of the audit
Nomura Europe Finance NV. (or NEF) has operations in both Tokyo (Japan) and Amsterdam (Netherlands). The financial
information of operations at both locations is included in the financial statements of NEF.

Our audit focused on the operations in the Netherlands and Japan. We have:

Performed audit procedures ourselves over operationsin the Netherlands

Used the work of a component auditor, an EY Global member firm, operating under our coordination and supervision when auditing
the operations in Japan
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Because of the continuing (international) travel restrictions and social distancing due to the Covid-19 pandemic, we used

communication technology and written information exchange, e.g. intensified communication with our component auditor, in order to
obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence.

We sent instructions to the component auditor, covering the significant areas and the information required to be reported to us. Based
on our risk assessment, we held virtual site visits with our team in Japan. These site visits were virtual due to Covid-19 and
encompassed some, or al, of the following activities: reviewing key local working papers and conclusions and obtaining an
understanding of key processes. We interacted regularly with the component team during various stages of the audit, through the use of
video or teleconferencing facilities. We held a collective virtual closing meeting with both Amsterdam and Tokyo management. We
reviewed key working papers of the component auditor using the EY electronic audit file platform, screen sharing or by the provision
of copies of work papers direct to the audit team.

By performing the procedures mentioned above over operations in the Netherlands and Japan, we have been able to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence about NEF' s financial information to provide an opinion on the financial statements as awhole.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financia
statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive
reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Compared to prior year, no adjustments have been made in the key audit matters.

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

The derivatives portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives where the
values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-
market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

Risk . . R I ) .
We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14 and note 24 to the
financial statements as akey audit matter due to the relative size of the related accounts as compared to the
financial position and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with aresulting risk for
incorrect valuation of the derivative financial instruments.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’ s accounting
policies relating to the valuation of derivative financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value
Measurement’ as well as current and emerging industry practices and whether these have been applied
consistently.

We have obtained an understanding of the derivatives valuation process, evaluated the design and tested
operating effectiveness of internal controls. Thisincludes those controls within the model validation process
and the independent price verification process that address the risk of material misstatement relating to

) management’ s assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also
Our audit approach | . ) o . o
includes the testing of model performance and suitability controlsin the current market conditions.
Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodologies and tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparing these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation
adjustments relating to CVA and DVA. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held
with the support of our own valuation specidlists.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.
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Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of derivative financial instruments
Key observations and agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and the disclosures on derivatives in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Nomura Europe Finance NV. issuesfinancial liabilities which are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2
positions) and non-market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

Risk . ) . e . . . . .
We consider the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
note 20 and note 24 to the financial statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the account as
compared to the financial position and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with a
resulting risk for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’s accounting
policies relating to the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or lossin
accordance with IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments and IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ aswell as current
and emerging industry practices and whether these have been applied consistently.

We have obtained an understanding of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
valuation process and evaluated the design and tested operating effectiveness of internal controls. This
includes those controls within the model validation process and the independent price verification process
that address the risk of material misstatement relating to management’ s assessment of the significant inputs
) and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also includes the testing of model performance and
Our audit approach o . -
suitability controlsin the current market conditions.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodologies, tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparison of these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation
adjustments relating to own credit risk. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions issued
with the support of our own valuation specialists as well as performed independent testing on bonds by using
available market quotations.

Lastly, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of financial liabilities designated at
Key observations | fair value through profit or loss and agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and
the disclosures in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Valuation of loans and advances to affiliates

Asdisclosed in Note 2.3 (e) of the financia statements, Nomura Europe Finance NV. isrequired to record
an impairment allowance for expected credit losses for the loans and advances to affiliates. The impairment
allowance is based on the expected credit |osses associated with the probability of default in the next 12
months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the

Risk allowance is based on the probability of default over the expected life of the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliates as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the size of the loans and advances to affiliates and given that an
impairment may have a material effect on the company’s result.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the company’s accounting
policies related to recognition of expected credit losses in accordance with of IFRS 9 ‘Financia Instruments.
We evaluated whether the accounting policies and methods applied for making estimates have been applied
consistently.

We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an understanding of the

) impairment process and model. We assessed the impairment methodology and expected credit loss

Our audit approach ) . - . . . o
calculation. We verified the criteriafor identifying significant increase in credit risk and tested the accuracy

of internal credit ratings.

We evaluated the determination of the probability of default including forward-looking information. We

evaluated management’ s impact assessment for current and expected market conditions on expected credit

losses. Furthermore, we recalculated the impairment allowance as per 31 March 2022.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the impairment allowance for expected credit
losses for the loans and advances to affiliates and agree with the managing directors assessment of the
expected credit losses and the disclosures on |oans and advances to affiliates in accordance with EU-IFRS
and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Key observations

Report on other information included in the annual report

The annual report contains other information in addition to the financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements

Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the management report and the other information
asrequired by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the financial statements
or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we
comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures
performed is substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the management report in accordance
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. We are unable to determine since which
financial year we have operated as the statutory auditor, but we have operated as statutory auditor for at least 17 years.

Description of responsibilities regarding the financial
statements

Responsibilities of the managing directors for the financial statements

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with EU-
IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the managing directors are responsible for such internal control as
the managing directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the managing directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to

continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the managing directors should prepare the
financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless the managing directors either intend to liquidate the company
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or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The managing directors should disclose events and circumstances

that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective isto plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all material errors and
fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements. The materiality affects the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch

Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designing and
performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the managing directors

Concluding on the appropriateness of the managing directors use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and performing the audit. We
are responsible for obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the company’s operations to
express an opinion on the financial statements. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures to be
carried out for operations in both Japan and the Netherlands.

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter isin the public
interest.

Amsterdam, 5 July 2022

Ernst & Young AccountantsLLP
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R. Koekkoek
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